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We took an enormous step forward in o strategic
shift toward thinking, acting and performing as a
global provider of packaging solutions to the world’s
leading businesses and brands. We added new talent.
We acquired new lines of business. We developed new
customer relationships and new solutions, created a
new headquarters. and reinvented just about everything
else about the culture, business pracrices and innovation

that surround us.

“[he result is a combination of diverse capabilities and
deep relationships that's leading Mead Westvaco to a
new position of competitiveness—one thar we believe
we're defining for the first time. Unlike any other single
company, we’'re becoming the power behind the

consumer package.




NNNNNNNNNNNN

We'RE
SECOMING

T
B
TR

PACIKAG[E.

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

e POWLER
AUND

= CONSUM

EIR




“We have an energetic team
committed to a culture of
collaboration and creativity
across our businesses.”
JOHN A. LUKE, JR., CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND EMPLOYEES:

The new and stronger Mead Westvaco is taking shape. In 2006,
we made significant progress toward becoming the global
packaging leader we envision. At this time last year, we had a clear
strategic blueprint for action. After implementing key elements
of our ongoing strategy, we've emerged as a stronger and more
nimble company, and along the way have opened a new set of
opportunities for profitable growth.

The results are clear. We reported improved financial perfor-
mance in almost every category — generating revenue growth,
improving operating profitability and increasing cash flow. We are
competing in growing global markets with innovative products
and enhanced services and capabilities. We have an energetic team
committed to a culture of collaboration and creativity across our
businesses. We strengthened our relationships with customers,
and learned more about what motivates the end consumer.

We know that packaging is an essential part of our customers’
brand and their customers’ overall experience. Our customers
want a reliable packaging partner that can connect with consumers
on the store shelf, enhance the value of their products and help
uphold their brand promises on a global scale. With innovative
packaging products and expertise and unequaled global reach,
Mead Westvaco is uniquely able to deliver the highest quality
packaging experience each and every time, for each and every
customer—from emerging product leaders to the most recogniz-
able global brands. Today, our aspiration to think and act as a
global packaging leader is no longer a strategy. It is our reality.

Opening Our Possibilities 3




A YEAR OF CHANGE

How can we tell? This year, we took large and small steps to effectively link our
packaging strategy to the realities of the growing—and changing — global marketplace
for branded consumer products. The result is a new Mead Westvaco that looks and fecls

different from the one I wrote about in this letter just rwelve months age.

OUR PACKAGING PLATFORM One of the most important steps was reorganizing and
augmenting our packaging platform. We aligned our products and services by rargeted
markets and key customers, creacing the Packaging Resources and Consumer Solutions
segments. We also acquired and integrared Calmar’s leading positions in primary
packaging—such as the revolutionary NoC fragrance dispenser —into our existing
platform. Together, these changes helped solidify and strengthen our presence along
the entire global packaging value chain.

This comprehensive packaging platform is ensuring that we are the parener of
choice 1o help many of the world’s largest companics bring their products to marker,
inform their customers, and increase sales— making McadWestvaco che packaging
power behind brand names from Coca-Cola to Scorts and from L'Oreal to Yoplait. By
partnering with our customers at the design table, on the production line, along their
encire supply chain, and, especially, on the storc shelf, we are doing more to help chem

grow than ever before.

OUR CULTURE OF COLLABORATION To continue growing along with our customers, we
must lead our industry in innovation. The newly opened Center for Packaging Innovation,
on the campus of N.C. State University in Raleigh, North Carolina, will concentrate

our global efforts to fill the pipeline of commercial offerings for our packaging platform.
At this state-of-the-art hub for collaborative research, materials scientists and design
professionals work side-by-side with our customers’ brand managers and supply chain
experts to tailor next-generation solutions to the packaging challenges they face. One such
challenge is “wrap rage” —the often frustrating struggle with plastic clamshell packaging,
Mead Westvaco has developed Natralock security packaging to replace these ditheult-to-
open packages with a secure, safe and sustainable paperboard alternative.

This kind of cutting-edge collaboration is not only centered in Raleigh. The hallways
of our new corporate offices in Richmond, Virginia, are buzzing with creative activicy
that was not possible when leadership from our various businesses were located hundreds
of miles apart. Richmond is also the central locarion for our new Global Business

Services team which is reducing costs, conselidating previously redundant casksand
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promoting, best practices to improve eﬂiciency and productivity ACTOSs our operations.
With our new direction and new locartion, we added a number of enthusiastic and
energetic new faces 1o our experienced Mead Westvaco team. In particular, three leaders
have joined our efforts and validared our decision to focus on packaging as an exciting
area of growth for the future. Mark S. Cross joined the company as Senior Vice President
to direct our business development in emerging markets, focusing most immediately on
China, India and Eastern Europe. And the addition of James M. Kilts, former chairman
and CEO of Gillette, and Timothy H. Powers, chairman and CEQ of Hubbell, Inc.,
to our Board of Directors afirms the directional changes we have implemented. Their
experienced voices have already proven valuable as we work to leverage our packaging

platform in che consumer product marketplace.

PROOF OF OUR PROGRESS

We have been aggressive wirh changes thar will help grow our business and improve

prefitability, and our financial performance bears this out. Mead Westvaco delivered
improved results for the year, including a six percent increase in company-wide sales,
and revenue and profit gains across most of our major businesses.

The Packaging Resources Group turned in a strong year, while the Consumer
Solutions Group capiralized on growth opportunities even as sales weakened in
traditionally strong markets—namely media. While packaging is our primary focus,
our complementary business segments— Consumer & Ofhee Products and Specialty
Chemicals— fic comfortably into our company’s strategy and contribute meaningfully
to the bottom line.

The entire company drove price and mix improvements that helped to partially
offset record inpuc prices for energy and raw materials, and continued to make progress

on our cost initiative—banking $60 million this year to bring our cumulative run-

rate savings to $125 million at the end of 2006. Our 2006 performance is presented
in greater detail starting on page 24,

Of course, we do not only measure our performance in terms of financial results,
We take seriously our responsibility to the environment, 1o the health and safety of our
employees and to the well-being of the communities in which we operate. For the third
straight year, Mead Westvaco was named 1o the Dow Jones Sustainability World Indexes,
an indication that we are perpetuating and building upon our longstanding reputation
as a steward for our resources, a good corporate citizen and a company of character.

In addition o these important issues for our company and communities, we are also

attuned to public policies that affect our ability—and thart of other manufacturers and
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American businesses —to compete in the increasingly demanding g|obal marketphcc.
We continue to advocate for reasonable policies that encourage growth, promote free trade

and provide for a level global playing ficld.

A COMPANY OF PEOPLE AND PRODUCTS

Many people know our company by the products we make—products they use countless
times every day when they brush their teeth, cara bowl of cereal, wear perfume or
cologne, take prescription medicine, drink a soda, clean their homes or watch a DVD.
Some of our products are highlighted on the coming pages along with our employees.
“That is because it's our people who make these products possible.

Employees working for Mead Westvaco around the globe are gratified by the
changes we have made chis year and the improved performance we will build on in the
future. They have cach been a part of making our company stronger, and can feel the
differences every day ac their desks, in the mills, at our converting facilities and design
centers and in sales meetings and consulrations with our valued customers. I'd like o
thank everyone who has chosen to be a part of the new Mead Westvaco—and played an
important role in the progress we've made toward our vision of leadership in packaging

and packaging solutions.

Sincerely,

fg.eaq.

John A. Luke, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 28, 2007

MeadWestvaco 2006 Annual Report




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In millions, except per share data 2006 2005
Net sales $6,530 $ 6170
Income from

continuing operations? $ 93 $ 119
Income from

continuing operations,

per share! $ 0.52 $ 062
Net Income? $ 93 $ 28
Net Income per share? $ 0.52 $ 014
Dividends per share $ 092 $ 0892
Cash provided by

operating activities $ 567 $ 227
Capital expenditures $ 302 $ 305
Dividends paid $ 167 $ 178
Total assets $9,285 $ 8,908
Long-term debt $ 2,372 $ 2,417
Shareholders’ equity $ 3,533 $ 3,483
Debt-to-capital ratio 42.2% 41.1%
Return on invested capital® 6.3% 5.8%

MeadWestvaco achieved a
number of significant
strategic, operational and
financial milestones in 2006:
Solid sales and earnings
improvement generated
$567 million of cash flow
from operations.

Reduced our overall cost
structure by about $60 million
in 2006 in connection with
our cost reduction initiative,
bringing cumulative savings
since 2005 to $125 million.
Realigned the packaging
business into two focused
groups.

Strengthened our global
packaging platform with the
acquisition of Calmar.
Established a new innavation
center in Raleigh, North
Carolina.

Consolidated our corperate
activities and headquarters in
Richmond, Virginia.

N

Excluding the items included in footnote 2, adjusted income from continuing operations was $162 million, or $0.90 per share, and $158
million, or $0.82 per share, for 2006 and 2005, respectively.
2006 includes the tollowing: after-tax restructuring charges of $85 million, or $0.47 per share; after-tax one-time costs of $26 miltion,

or $0.14 per share; after-tax gains of $24 million, or $0.13 per share from the sale of a note and corporate real estate; and after-tax gains
of $18 million, or $0.10 per share, from the sale of torestlands, 2005 includes the following: after-tax gains of $37 million, or $0.19 per
share, on the sale of forestlands and after-tax restructuring charges of $20 million, or $0.10 per share. 2005 also in¢ludes discontinued
operations of $91 million, or $0.48 per share, and after-tax debt retirement charges of $56 million, or $0.29 per share, both associated

with the sale of the company's printing and writing papers business.
Calculated using earnings before interest and taxes which has been adjusted on 2 pretax basis for items in footnote 2 and tax efiscled at the

[

aclual annual effective tax rates of .4% for 2006 and 11.9% for 2005; invested capital for calculation is period end net debt plus equity.
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“IN PERSONAL CARE, PACKAGING CAN'T AFFORD
TO BE INVISIBLE. IT HAS TO BE ENGAGING.

INSPIRING. AND IRRESISTIBLE.”
SARA SNOW, SALES CORRESPONDENT

What separates great products from everyday goods? Is it R&D?
Marketing? The idea itself? In the end, it’s the consumer who
decides. And the consumer marketplace is where Mead Westvaco
can make all the difference. In 2006, John Frieda took its
pioneering reputation in hair care to a new level with the
introduction of Luminous Color Glaze’, an entirely new type

of product in the hair coloring category— a blend of mild

dyes and shine boosters for colored hair. The brand turned to

its partnership with MeadWestvaco for packaging that would
communicate this innovation just as dramatically. The solution
came from our AGI Klearfold product line, whose plastic was
formed into a clear “cat-eye” cylinder package, printed and fitted
with custom end-caps. The design projects the lustrous nature
of the product—and fits perfectly with the John Frieda-designed
primary packaging inside to create the product’s final look on
the shelf. The packaging gave the product and new category
instant retail credibility, gaining shelf space from neighborhood

drug and beauty stores to mass retailers.

Opening Our Possibilities 11




“BETWEEN THE FARW FIELD AND THE REVAILER,
WEWE CREATED MO GNLY PACRAGING,
AND REALTHIER BUT ECENEMICS,”

LAV I A1 HE

DO CTH Gl







In 1997, 30.2 percent of produce
production was lost between
harvest and consumption,
equaling $2.8 billion in losses.
But by 2004, Brazil's fruit and
vegetable losses had been
trimmed to 25.8 percent, saving
about $700 miltion dollars

in produce value annually.
MeadWestvaco has been an
important part of this evolution.




[t takes up to six months for a papaya o ripen and be harvested.

And only five minutes in the supply chain for it to be ruined. In
developing nations, like Brazil, more than 30 percent of produce never
reaches the consumer because of damage caused in rransit by rough-
surfaced packaging, agricultural diseases, excessive packing weight ot
careless operations. Working with our customer parmer, Caliman,
though, Mead Westvaco's Rigesa corrugated board business has shifted
agribusiness away from traditional wooden crates—which can be easily
overloaded, carry fruic and vegetable pathogens, and require greater
maintenance and logistics costs— toward versatile corrugated boxes that
coneain, wransporr, store and display produce. Over 10 years, Rigesa
has gained a 50 percent share of Brazil's corrugated market for exported

produce—and changed an industry’s productivity as a resulr.
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IF PACKAGING DESIGN CAN HELP BRANDS
COMMUNICATE BETTER, PRODUCTS PERFORM
BETTER AND CONSUMERS FEEL BETTER...THAT'S
A LOT MORE THAN ANOTHER PACKAGE.”

MIKE WADE, PROJECT MANAGER

(aisc pictured) BARBARA McCUTCHAN, DIRECTOR,
ENTERPRISE STEWARDSHIP AND SUSTAINABILITY

Sharp-vdged, seemingly impenetrable and environmentally questionable, plastic “chamshell”
packages have been a fixture on club store shelves for years, thanks o their abilizy w display
product and deter theft, They're a simple, secure way for club stores o repackage the
products they buy in bulk from manufacturers, But consumers hate them, naming them the
number-one most consumer-unfriendly packaging, MeadWestvaco is now hringing
consumers—along with retailers and packaged goods brands—a friendlier solution,
Natralock™ retail packaging is primarily paper-hased, with a clear bubble that securely seals
in the product and provides visibiliry on the store shelf. In late 2006, U.S.-based Costeo
became the first club store w adopt Nawralock, using it to package popular Lexmark printer
cartridges. The environmental and consumer benefits of Natralock fir Cosico’s business
principles, and its belief in making merchandise available to members in the “right way,”

including offering packaging thar does not rely on environmentally harmful marerials.
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“THE NATURE OF OUR BUSINESS IS COLLABORATION.”
STACY SLAMAN, SENIOR CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE

18 MeadWestvaco 2006 Annual Report




'The partnership between Mead Westvaco’s Calmar
business and The Scotts Company has been fertile
ground for innovation for years. In 2006, we took

our collaboration to a higher level, with the design
and commercialization of the LiquaFeed product

for Scotts’ market-leading Miracle-Gro brand.
LiquaFeed is a leap forward in product performance,
and a demonstration of the premium position of

the Miracle-Gro brand. Calmar collaborated with the
Scotts design team to create the hose-sprayer system
that’s at the heart of the new LiquaFeed ready-to-use
plant fertilizing system—a stylish and comfortable
mixing bottle and spray head designed to give
gardeners exact control over the nutrients they provide
their plants. Introduced in the spring, LiquaFeed

has become the most successful new product launch
in the history of Scotts, increasing sales in the
fertilizer category by 11 percent and exceeding the

company’s sales projections by 300 percent.

Opening Our Possibilities 19
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OLIVIER BOURASSIN, REGIONAL SALES MANAGER

When Yoplair was diversifying its children’s yogurt drink and fresh cheese producr lines

in 2006, it arned to MeadWestvaco to get to market fast—and flexibly. Our EvoTech
packaging system provided a swift solutdon. In abowun 19 weeks—up to five weeks faster than
typical for a packaging system installation— the MeadWestvace packaging systems ream in
France completely installed and started up the Evo'lech machine at Yoplaie's planc locatian,
ensuring that the brand could deliver on its scheduled product commitments. Evolech gives
the plant the capability to produce multiple consumer packs on one maching, including
packaging for two of its most popular brands.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Mead Westvaco Corporation (“Mead Westvaco”

or the “company”) reported net income of $93 million, or $0.52 per share. Net income for
the year included after-tax restructuring charges of $85 million, or $0.47 per share, related
primarily to employee separadion costs, facility closures and the permanent shurdown of
two previously idled paperboard machines, and after-tax one-time costs of $26 million,

or 30.14 per share, related to the company’s cost reducrion initiative. Also included in net
income for 2006 was an after-tax gain of $13 million, or $0.07 per share, on the sale of a
note (PIK note) received as part of the consideration for the sale of the printing and writing
papers business in 2005, and an after-tax gain of $11 million, or $0.06 per share, on the
sale of corporate real estate. Comparable amounts for prior periods are noted later in this
discussion, The amounts related to the items noted above are reflected in corporate and
other for segment reporting purposes.

During 2006, the company gencrated strong revenue growth from higher selling
prices and an improved product mix in many of its businesscs. In addition, the results for
20006 were favorably impacted from the acquisition of Calmar. These improvements were
partiatly offset by significanc inflation in energy and raw material prices. In 2006, the pre-
tax cost for the principal inputs of energy, raw materials and freight was approximately $159
million higher than in 2005, offserting improvements in price and mix of $142 million.
Cash flow provided by operating activities from continuing operations grew to $567 million
in 2006, compared 1o $305 million in 2003, reflecting higher earnings and improvements
in working capiral.

MeadWestvaco's principal business segments are (i) Packaging Resources, (ii} Consumer
Solutions, (iii) Consumer and Office Products, and {iv) Specialty Chemicals, In the fourth
quarter of 2006, the company completed the change in its management and operating
structure such that its previously reported Packaging segment was replaced by the Packaging
Resources and Consumer Selutions segments. This segment structure reflects the company's
internal reporting to its chief decision makers and aligns the segment disclosure with
management’s analysis of results of operations and the process utilized to allocate resources.
The company has presented its reportable segments for 2005 and 2004 1o reflect the new
reporting structure adopred in 2006, Also in 2005, che company exited its printing and
writing papers business. which is recorded as discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial statements.

In the Packaging Resources segment, sales in 2006 increased 4% compared to 2005 and
segment operating profit increased 18% during the same period. The Packaging Resources
segment sales increased primarily as a resulr of higher selling prices and an improved
product mix. Volume in 2006 increased slightly as compared to 2005. Segment operating
profit increased in 2006 compared to 2003 as higher selling prices and improved product
mix and productivity mere than offset higher costs for raw materials, energy and freighe.
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In the Consumer Solutions segment, sales in 2006 increased 7% compared to 2005, bur
segment operating profit decreased 9% during the same period. The 2006 results include
the impact of Calmar, which was acquired in July 2006. Excluding Calmar, segment sales
in 2006 decreased 3% compared to 2005. Increased sales in beverage and the positive
impact of Calmar offset weaker demand for media packaging. Segment operating profir
decreased in 2006 versus 2005 as the positive results from Calmar and che operating profit
increases in beverage, personal care and tobacco were more than offset by declines in the
media business, and higher encrgy, freight and other input costs.

In the Consumer and Office Products segment, sales in 2006 increased 2% compared
1o 2005, but segment profits decreased 2% during the same period. Sales in 2006 were
positively impacted by improvements in price and mix, partially offset by lower volume
due in part to supply chain activities at large office products customers. Segment operating
profir decreased slightly in 2006 versus 2005 as improved mix and better performance in
the Brazilian schoo! and office products business were offser by higher manufacruring and
paper input costs.

In the Specialty Chemicals segment, sales in 2006 increased 16% compared to 2005
and operating profic increased by 31% during the same period. Increased sales in 2006 were
due to higher selling prices and improved volume in the pine chemical businesses. Sales in
the carbon-based businesses were flac as U.S. auto manufacruring declined slightly. Segment
operating profit increased in 2006 versus 2005 as the positive effects of higher selling prices
and lower selling, general and administrative expenses were partially offser by higher input
costs for raw materials, principally crude tall oil, which increased significantly from the
prior year.

In 2005, the company launched a cost reduction injtiative to improve the efficiency
of our business model. As parr of the initiative, we are focusing on reducing the cost
structure across the company by redesigning general and adminiscrative services with a
plan to move to a more simplified, standardized, global model. We are also reducing our
real estate footprint and streamlining our warehousing and logistics network. The goal
of this initiative is to reduce the overall cost structure of the company by $175 million to
$200 million, befare inflation, on an annual run-rate basis by the end of 2007, Through
2006, specific actions were completed that resulted in annual run-rate savings of about
$125 million, before inflation. The company anticipates achieving run-rate savings of
$175 million to $185 million by the end of 2007 with the remaining balance of the $200
million run-rate savings expected to be achieved in 2008; however, the company will
look for every opporrunity to pull forward more savings into 2007. In February 2006,
the company announced plans designed to accelerate progress toward a new packaging
platform, create a new cencer for packaging innovation, and consolidate corporate activities
to a new corporate headquarters located in Richmond, Virginia. Through year end, the
company made substantial progress in these initiatives by realigning its packaging business
into rwo focused groups, establishing the new innovation center in Raleigh, North
Carolina, and completing the corporate consolidation plan.

Opening Qur Possibilities
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table summarizes our resulrs for the vears ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, as reported in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States (GAAP). All references to per share amounts are presented on an after-tax basis.

Years ended December 31

In millions. except per share data 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $56.530 $6,170 $6,060
Cost of sales 5.399 5,087 4,925
Selling, general and administrative expenses 905 756 800
interest expense 211 208 209
Qther income, net 83) 116} (197}
Income: from continuing operations before income taxes 98 135 323
Income tax provisicn 5 16 99
Income from continuing operations 93 119 224
Discontinued operations (91} (573
Net income (loss) 3 93 $ 28 $ (349)

Inceme (loss) per share — basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.52 $ 062 $1.11
Discontinued operations (0.48} {2.84)
Net income (loss) $ 0.52 $ 014 $(1.73)

Income (loss} per share - diluted:

Income from continuing operations 3 0.62 $ 062 $ 1.10
Discontinued operations {0.48) {2.82)
Net income (loss) % 0.52 $ 0.14 $(1.72)

Sales for the year ended December 31, 2006, were $6.5 billion compared to $6.2 billion
for the year ended December 31, 2005, and $6.1 billion for the year ended December 31,
2004. Increased sales in 20006, compared to 2005, were the result of higher selling prices
and improved product mix in many of our businesses, partially offser by weaker demand
for certain products compared to 2005. The current-year sales include $206 million from
the addition of Calmar, which was acquired in July 2006. Refer to the individual segment
discussion that follows for detailed sales informartion for each segment.

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2006, was $5.4 billion, compared te $5.1
billion and $4.9 billion for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Our gross margin in 2006 was approximately che same as 2005 and was down abour onc
percentage point from 2004, The decline in gross margin from 2004 was primarily related
to increased input costs in 2006 and 2005 for raw materials, energy, and freight and higher
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market-related downtime in 2005. During 2006, the pre-tax input cost of energy, raw
materials and freight was approximately $159 million higher than in 2005. Restructuring
charges included in cost of sales were $53 million, $18 million and $89 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Maintenance costs and the effects of markec-related downtime are reflected in cost of
sales. Total maintenance costs in 2006 were $234 million, compared to $244 million in
2005 and $242 million in 2004, In 20006, the company took no significant market-related
downtime, while in 2005 and 2004 the company took 109,000 rons and 17,000 tons
of market-related downtime which had a negative impact on results of $31 million and
%3 million, respectively. In 2005 and 2004, the mix of market-related downtime varied
by business, but primarily occurred in the Packaging Resources segment. The effects of
market-related downtime consist of the unabsorbed fixed manufacturing costs due to lower
production, but do not include lost profits due o lower shipment levels.

Selling, gencral and administrative expenses were $905 million, $756 million and $800
million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, Selling,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were 13.99%, 12.3% and 13.2%
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Higher expense in
2006 was due primarily to increased restrucruring charges and one-time costs, the addition
of Calmar in July 2006 and higher share-based compensation. Restructuring charges
included in selling, general and administrative expenses were $60 million in 2006 and $11
million in both 2005 and 2004. Incremental costs in selling, general and administrarive
expenses in 2006 compared to the prior year included certain one-rime costs, che addition
of Calmar and share-based compensation in the amounts of $42 million, $26 million
and $15 million, respectively. Additionally, beginning in 2005, about $30 million of
certain costs classified as cost of sales, were, in prior years, included in selling, general and
administrative expenses for the consumer packaging business, as the company integrated
the business and shifted cercain funcrions to production.

Pension income for continuing operations, before settlements, curtailments and
termination benefits was $50 million in 2006 compared to $67 million in 2005 and $86
million in 2004. Pension income is reflected in cost of sales and selling, general and
administrative expenses, and is reparted in corporate and other for segment reporting
purposes.

Interest expense from continuing operations of $211 million in 2006 was similar to
2005 and 2004 interest expensc of $208 million and $209 million, respectively. The
increase in interest expense in 2006 as compared to the prior years was the result of the
incremental short-term borrowings obtained in connection with the Calmar acquisition.
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, interest expense associated with the
company's papers business, which was sold in the second quarrter of 2005, was included in
discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations in the amount of $20
million and $69 million, respectively.

Ocher income, net, was $83 million in 2006, compared to $16 million and $197
million for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gains on sales of forescland were $29 million,
$60 million and $176 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2006, the
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

company recorded gains on sales of corporate real estate of $18 million and a gain on the
sale of a PIK note of $21 million, as well as a loss of $20 million on asset impairments.
The results for 2006 and 2005 include transition services income of $5 million and $25
million, respectively, related to the services provided to NewPage. The results for 2005
include a loss on extinguishment of debr of $90 million related to the company reducing
debe by approximately $1 billion. The Company’s proportionate share of the net income or
(losses) of its equity-method investments, before other than temporary impairments, was
$(6) million, $(4) million and $2 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecrively. Other
items, including interest income and foreign currency exchange gains and losses, nerted 10
income of $36 million, $25 million and $19 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the company’s annual
effective rax rate was approximately 5%, 12% and 31%, respectively. The decline in the rate
for 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily due to a shift in the level and mix of domestic
versus foreign earnings, The decline in the rate for 2005 compared 1o 2004 was due 1o a
lower proportion of domestic earnings in 2005, a change in the allocation of state taxes as a
result of the sale of the printing and writing papers business, and rax credics.

COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005 In addicion to the information
discussed above, the following sections discuss the results of operations for each of our
business segments and corporate and other.

PACKAGING RESOURCES

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Sales $2.953 32,836
Segment profit! 275 234

! Segment profit is measured as results before restructuring charges and one-time casts, pension income, interest income
and expense, income taxes, minority interest, disconlinued operations, extracrdinary items and cumulative etfect of
accounting changes.

The Packaging Resources segment produces bleached paperboard. Coated Natural Kraft®
paperboard (CNK), kraft paperboard, linerboard and saturating kraft. and packaging

for consumer products markets including packaging for media, beverage and dairy,
cosmetics, tobacco, pharmaceuticals and health care products. This segment’s products are
manufactured at four domestic mills and two mills located in Brazil. Bleached paperboard
is used for packaging high-value consumer products such as pharmaceuticals, cosmetics,
tobacco, food service, media products and asepric carrons. CNK paperboard is used for

a range of packaging applications, the largest of which for MeadWestvaco is multi-pack
beverage packaging. Kraft paperboard is used for folding carton applicatiens. Linerboard
is used in the manufacture of corrugated boxes and containers. Saturating kraft is used in
the manufacture of decorative laminates for kitchen countertops, furniture, flooring, wall
panels, as well as pad stock for electronic components.
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Sales in the Packaging Resources segment increased to $3.0 billion in 2006, compared

to $2.8 billton in 20035, The sales increase of 4% for 2006 over 2005 was a result of
higher selling prices realized and strengthening demand for many products. Product mix
improvement also favorably impacted sales in 2006. Shipments of bleached paperboard

in 2006 were 1,646,000 tons, down 2% from the prior year, reflecting the permanent
shutdown of two machines in 2006. Shipments of CNK in 2006 were 1,082,000 tons, up
4% from 2005. Shipments of unbleached paperboard in 2006 were 838,000 tons, down
2% from the prior vear, reflecting the intentional shift away from less profirable products.
Compared to 2005, bleached paperboard prices in 2006 were up 3%, CNK open market
prices were up 3% and unbteached paperboard prices were up 9%. Sales of the company’s
Brazilian packaging operation, Rigesa Lida., increased 8% in 2006 over 2005 driven by
improved mix and improved volume, partially offset by lower prices.

Segment profit for 2006 increased to $275 million compared to $234 million in 2005,
The 18% improvement reflects improvements in pricing, volume and mix and productivity,
partially offset by higher prices for raw materials and energy. Earnings in 2000 benefited
by $54 million from price increases and mix improvements, $5 million from volume
improvement and $70 million from favorable cost productivity. Earnings for 2006 were
negatively affected by $77 million from higher input costs for energy, wood and freight
and from $11 million in other operating cost increases compared to the prior year. The
prior year results reflect the impact of higher market-related downtime and the impact of
two hurricanes.

CONSUMER SOLUTIONS

Years ended December 31

tn millians 2006 2005
Sales $2.170 $2,021
Segment profit! 93 102

I Segment prefit is measured as results before restrucluring charges and one-lime cosls, pension income, interest income
and expense, income laxes, minority interest, discontinued operations, extraordinary items and cumuiative effect of
accounting changes.

The Consumer Solutions segment offers a full range of converting and consumer
packaging solutions including printed plastic packaging and injection-molded products
used for packaging media products such as DVDs and CDs; cosmetics and pharmaceutical
products: and plastic dispensing and spraying systems for personal care, healthcare,
fragrance and lawn and garden markets. This segment designs and produces multi-pack
cartons and packaging systems primarily for the beverage take-home marker and packaging
for the tobacco market. Paperboard and plastic are converted into packaging products

at plants located in North America, Brazil, Asia and Europe. In addition, this segment
manufactures equipment that is leased or sold to its beverage and dairy customers 1o
package their products.
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Sales in the Consumer Solucions segment increased 7% to $2.2 billion in 2006, compared
to $2.0 billion in 2005, Sales for 2006 include the results of Calmar, acquired in the third
quarter of 2006. Excluding the impact of Calmar, sales in 2006 declined 3% as compared
to 2003. Sales improved slightly for our beverage business, but declined for other specialty
packaging lines. Sales were particularly weak for media as demand for music packaging
declined, game volumes decreased due to delayed next-generation console releases and the
absence of DV D packaging business for the year's “blockbuster” ilmed entertainment titles.

Segment operating profit for 2006 decreased 9% to $93 million, compared to $102
million in 2005. Earnings benefits from the acquisition of Calmar, improved results in our
beverage, personal care and tobacco businesses and certain cost improvements were offset
by $6 million in higher input costs for energy and freight, $7 million in volume decreases,
$5 million in unfavorable price and mix and $19 million in higher other material and

opcrating COSILS compared to thc pl’iO[’ year.

CONSUMER AND QFFICE PRODUCTS
Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Sales 1,143 $1,125
Segment profit 127 130

t Segment profit is measured as results before restructuring charges and one-time cosls, pension income, interest income
and expense, income taxes, minority interesl, discontinued operations, extraordinary items ang cumulative effect of
accounting changes.

The Consumer and Office Products segment manufactures, sources, markets and discributes
school and office products, time-management products and envelopes o retailers and
commercial distriburors. This segment’s operations are conducted predominantly in Norch
America and Brazil.

Sales for this segment increased slighely to $1.14 billion in 2006, compared to $1.13
billion for 2005. The 2% sales growth from 2005 reflects solid performance in the segment’s
value-added branded consumer product lines, improved overall mix and a solid performance
in the Brazilian school products business partially offset by customers shortening their
supply chain, which caused sales delays in certain products into the first quarter of 2007,

Year-over-year operating profic was down $3 million in 2006 compared to the prior
vear. Resules in 2006 were paositively impacted by $45 million from price increases and mix
improvements, offser by the negative impact of higher input and operating costs of $35
million and volume decreases of $13 million. This segment’s aperating profit continues to

be tmpacted by low-priced Asian imports.
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SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
Years ended December 31

in millions 2006 2005
Sales $493 $425
Segment profit! 51 39

1 Segmant profit is rmeasuted as results before restruciuding charges and one-time cosis, peEnsion income, interest income
and expense, income taxes, minority interest, discontinued cperations, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of
accounting changes.

The Specialty Chemicals segment manufactures, markets and distribures specialty chemicals
derived from sawdust and byproducts of the papermaking process. Products include, but are
not limited to, activated carbon used in emission control systems for automobiles and trucks,
printing ink resins, and emulsifiers used in asphalt paving and dyestuffs.

Sales increased in 2006 to a record $493 million from $425 million in 2005 due
to higher selling prices and sirong demand for the segment’s indusirial pine chemicals
used in asphalt paving, dyes and propricrary publication ink resins and other industrial
markers. Year-over-year volumes for carbon-based products were essentially flat due to
lower automobile production volumes in North America. Increased segment operating
profit reflects the positive effects of pricing and volume of $50 million and reduced selling,
general and administrative expenses of $4 million, partially offset by higher prices of $42
million for raw materials, principally crude rall oil, freight and energy.

CORPORATE AND OTHER

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Sales $ 219 $2i3
Corporate and other loss! (448} (370)

1 Corporate and olher loss may include goodwill impairment charges, minarity interest, debt relirement charges, restructuring
charges and ane-time costs, net pension income, interestincome and expense, and gains on asset sales.

Corporate and other includes the company’s specialty paper business, forestry operations
and corporate support staff services, and related assets and liabilirics. The results also
include income and expense items not directly associated with segment operations, such as
certain legal charges and settlements, restructuring and one-time charges, pension income,
interest income and expense, and other charges.
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The loss for corporate and other was $448 million in 2006, compared to a toss of $370
million in 2005. The higher loss in 2006 compared to 2005 was the result of higher
restrucruring charges of $104 million, lower gains on forestland sales of $31 million, lower
transition service income from NewPage of $20 million, lower pension income of $17
million, onc-time costs in 2006 of $42 million, offset by debt rerirement charges of $90
million in 2003. a gain from the sale of a PIK note of $21 million in 2006, gains on

sales of corporate real estate of $18 milfion in 2006 and lower other costs of $7 million

in 2006 compated to 2005.

COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 The information in the
discussion below has been restated on a continuing operations basis and to reflect the new
segment reporting structure adopted in 2006.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS In connection with the sale of the company's printing and
writing papers business that occurred in 2005, the company recorded an after-tax lass from
discontinued operatioas for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 of $91 million
and $573 million, respectively. Results in 2005 and 2004 were negatively impacted by sale-
related costs, including lease termination charges, asser impairments, debt extinguishment
cos1s, pension settlement and cureailmenr losses, and other relared costs included in
discontinued operarions.

PACKAGING RESOURCES

Years ended December 31

In millicns 2005 2004
Sales $2.836 $2,754

Segment profit! 234 270

! Segment profit is measured as results before restructuring charges and one-time costs, pension income, interest income
and expense. income taxes, minority interest, discentinued operalians, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of
accounting changes.

Sales in 2005 for che Packaging Resources segment increased 3% compared to 2004, while
segment carnings decreased 13%. Revenue in the mill-based business, compared to the
prior year, was impacted by a decline in shipments of bleached paperboard as a result of the
impact of two hurricanes. Bleached paperboard shipments of 1.7 million tons were down
7% from 2004, while the business realized a year-over-year net price improvement of about
5% across the bleached paperboard grades. Shipments of CNK paperboard of over one
million tons were similar to shipments in 2004, with open market pricing increases of 3%
over the prior year. Linerboard shipments increased 17% from 2004, with pricing similar to
the prior year. The company’s Brazilian packaging operation, Rigesa Ltda., had an increase
in sales in 2005 over 2004 driven by higher prices and a stronger Brazilian currency.

The decline in segment earnings in 2005 reflects significandly higher input costs for raw
materizls and energy, higher market-related downtime and the impact of two hurricanes.
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CONSUMER SOLUTIONS
Years ended December 31

In millians 2005 2004
Sales $2,021 $2,030
Segment profit! 102 161

1 Segment profit is measured as resulls before resiructuring charges and cne-time costs, pension income, interest incame
and expense, income taxes, minority interest, discontinued operaticns, exiraordinary items and cumulative effect of
accounting changes.

Sales in 2005 for the Consumer Solutions segment were slightly less chan in 2004, and
segment earnings decreased 37%. This segment reported lower sales growth of print and
plastic packaging for the media and entertainmenr industries, but increased demand for
cosmetics and fobacco packaging in Europe. In the beverage packaging business, sales in
2005 were down compared to 2004 due to weaker soft drink demand in Northern America
and weaker demand in beer markers worldwide. A weaker euro had a negative impact on
sales for the European operations. The positive impact of improved volume and mix in
tobacco and cosmetics packaging in Europe was offset by weaker volume in media and
entertainment packaging as a result of a fack of blockbuster titles in 2005, weakness and
some share lass in games, DVD and music markets, and increased resin costs that could not
be passed on to customers. Operating profit in 2005 was pasitively impacted by growth in
nonbeverage dairy packaging from our European acquisition in 2004.

CONSUMER AND OFFICE PRODUCTS

Years ended December 31

In millions 2005 2004
Sales $1,125 $1,090
Segment profit! 130 137

1 Segment profitis measured as results before restructuring charges and one-time costs, pension income, interest income
and expense, income laxes, minority interest, discontinued cperations, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of
accounting changes.

Sales in 2005 for the Consumer and Office Products segment were up 3%, driven by

2004 acquisitions and improved demand for time-management products, offset in part

by global competitive pressures from lower priced Asian-based imports, especially related

to commodity-based paper products. Sales and operating profit in 2005 benefited from

the addition of the Brazilian school and office products business acquired in 2004,
additional contribution from the segment’s Canadian business and cost savings from facility
consolidations made in 2004. Secgment profit was negatively impacted by Asian import
price pressures and higher raw material input costs, primarily uncoated paper, which could
not be fully passed on to customers in 2005. Year-over-year profit results were positively
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impacted by $25 million from price increases and mix improvements, and $2 million from
other cost reductions; offset by the negative impact of higher input costs of $26 million and
volume decreases of $8 million.

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
Years ended Decembper 31

In millions 2005 2004
Sales $425 %410
Segment profit! 39 57

! Segment profit is measured as results before restructuring charges and one-time costs, pension income, inlerest income
and expense, income taxes, minority interest, discantinued operations, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of
accounting changes,

Sales in 2005 for the Specialty Chemicals segment increased 4% from 2004, while operating
profit declined 32%. Sales in 2005 were higher primarily as a result of higher selling prices
and strong demand for the segment’s chemicals used in asphalt paving, dyes, printing inks
and industrial pine chemical markers. These positive effects were offset by lower volumes

for some activated carbon products as a result of changes in design of emission systems by an
automaker customer. Higher raw material and energy input costs were the primary drivers of
the decline in the segment's operating profic compared 1o 2004. Year-over-year profit results
were positively impacted by price increases and mix improvements of $15 million, offset

by the negative impact of higher costs for raw materials and energy of $23 million, volume
decreases of $6 million, and other cost increases of $4 million.

CORPORATE AND OTHER

Years ended December 31

In millions 2005 2004
Sales $213 $216
Corporate and other loss! (370) {302)

! Corporate and other loss may include goodwill impairment charges, minority interest, debi relirement charges, restructuring
charges and one-time costs, nel pension income, interest income and expense, and gains on asset sales,

The loss for corporate and other was $370 million in 2005, compared to a loss of $302
million in 2004. The increase in the loss reflects lower forestland sales gains in 2005 of
$116 million, lower pension income of $17 million, and higher debt retirement cost of $89
million. These negative effects were partially offset by $71 million of lower restructuring
charges in 2005. higher transition services income of $25 million, higher interest income of
$21 million, reduced corporate spending of $33 million, and lower other costs of $4 million.
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OTHER ITEMS Selling, general and administrative expenses were $756 million in 2005
compared to $800 million in 2004. A portion of the decrease in 2005 was a result of various
activiries which focused on reduced spending and staff reductiens throughout the company.
Selling, general and administracive expenses included $11 million of restructuring charges
in both 2005 and 2004.

[nterest expense of $208 millien in 2005 was similar to interest expense of $209 million
in 2004.

Pension income for continuing operations, before settlements and curtailments, was
$67 million before raxes in 2005 compared to $86 million in 2004, reflecting the company's
continued overfunded position in its qualified plans.

Other income, net, decreased in 2009 to $16 million from $197 millien in 2004,
Included in ocher income, ner, in 2005 were gains on sales of forestlands of $60 million
compared to $176 million in 2004. Debt retirement costs were $89 million higher in 2005,
offset by higher transition service income of $25 million.

The company’s annual effective tax benefit rate for 2005 was 12% compared o 31%
in 2004. The decrease in the 2005 annual effective tax rate reflects a lower proportion of
domestic earnings in 2005, a change in the allocacion of state taxes as a result of the sale of
the printing and writing papers business, and tax credirs,

OCUTLOOK

PACKAGING RESOURCES MeadWestvaco's Packaging Resources group’s high-quality
paperboard products are marketed globally. Overall demand remains solid relative to the
scasonally weaker first calendar quarter. The company continues to experience steady order
levels from its key lines of business, which include global tobacco, beverage and asepric
applications. As such, the company’s focus is on realizing price increases to offset continued
historically high costs for raw materials, energy and freight. The company also is focusing
on continuing to improve its productivity by consolidating its customer service and by
pursuing other global supply chain initiatives, including enhancing transportation efficiency
and optimizing its warchouse foorprint. Any achieved benefits are expected to help further
offset historically high input cost inflation.

Throughout the year, outages for routine maintenance are planned, with two such
outages scheduled for che bleached paperboard system in the first quarter of 2007. Future
ourages will be communicated in a timely fashion by the company through its periodic
broad disclosures with the investment community.
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CONSUMER SCLUTIONS In 2006, overall profitability in MeadWestvaco’s Consumer
Solutions segment was below the company’s expectations. In 2007, the company has broadly
communicated a profit improvement plan for this business, which includes optimizing its
manufacturing capacity, refocusing its media business on higher value specialty packaging
for music, DVDs and games, eliminating operating redundancies and enhancing materials
procurement through the company’s shared services function. Mead Westvaco expects to
demonstrate meaningful year-over-year operating profit improvement beginning in the
second half of 2007 as it execures the aforementioned plan and conrinues to generare strong
growth and profitability in the company’s global dispensing and spraying systems business
that targets the personal care, healtheare, fragrance and lawn and garden markets. The
company also plans to expand its current operations in China and enter other emerging
markets, including India, which is expected 1o require modest investments in capital and in
selling, general and adminiscrative functions.

CONSUMER & OFFICE PRODUCTS The Consumer and Office Products segment historically
incurs a small loss in the first calendar quarter as the business builds inventory for its back-
to-school selling season in the second and third quarrters and for the peak selling season
for time-management products in the secand half of che year. Price and mix improvements
from the company's branded consumer product lines are expected to be partially offset by
continued high costs for uncoated paper, the segment’s principal raw material. In addition,
supply-chain acriviries by major customers and unpredicrable order patterns for the
company’s back-to-scheol and time management products may distort segment operating
profit quarrer-to-quarter.

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS In 2007, global demand for Mead Westvaco’s pine chemicals,
including proprietary ink resins, asphalt emulsifiers, rosin and other industrial pine-based
chemicals, is expected to remain solid. However, costs for crude tall oil, the principal input
for pine chemicat products, are expected to largely offset increases in selling prices. The
company also will continue ro seek growth opportunities for its carbon technology through
new products and geographic expansion 1o offser continued U.S. auto declines.

COST INITIATIVE AND RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES As part of its $200 million cost initiative,
MeadWestvaco achieved through 2006 annual run-rate savings of about $125 million,
before inflation. The company anticipates achieving cumulative run-rate savings of $175
million to $185 million by the end of 2007 with the balance of the $200 million expected
to be achieved in 2008. The company will, however, look for every opportunity to pull
forward more savings into 2007. The key components of the 2007 reduction will be the
conrinued execution of our North American shared services platform, IT reduction and
supply chain improvement.
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In February 2006, the company announced plans designed to accelerate progress toward

a new packaging placform, creare a new innovation center, and consolidate corporate
activities to a new corporate headquarters located in Richmond, Virginia. Through year
end, the company made substantial progress in these initiatives by realigning its packaging
business into two focused groups, establishing the new innovarion center in Raleigh, North
Carolina, and completing the corporate consolidation plan. The resulting operational
efficiencies, customer focus and market driven product innovation will strengthen our
position in the packaging industry. The changes began in the second quarter of 2006 and
are expected to be completed by early 2007. As part of these initiatives and the planned
restructure and realignment of the company’s consumer selutions business, the company
expects to incur berween $50 million and $75 million in restructuring charges and other
related costs in 2007,

OTHER ITEMS Capital spending was $302 million in 2006 and is expected to increase to
$360 million in 2007 due to the addition of Calmar, expansion initiatives into emerging
markets, and capirtal requirements for safety and energy related projects. Depreciation,
depletion and amortizarion expense was $517 million in 2006 and is expected to be abour
$525 million in 2007.

Interest expense totaled $211 million in 2006. Management expects interest expense 1o
be in the range of $210 million to $215 million in 2007.

Management currently estimates ovetall pension income in 2007 1o be approximately
$53 million which is derived primarily from the domestic plans. This estimate assumes a
discount rate of 5.75%, a salary increase rate of 4.0% and an expected rate of recurn on
assets of 8.5%.

LAND $ALES The company generated gross proceeds of $30 million and $68 million from
sales of forestland in 2006 and 2003, respectively.

On January 31, 2007, the company announced plans o sell approximately 300,000
acres of its forestlands throughout West Virginia, Alabama and Georgia. The company
expects to complete the sales during 2007. The land sales include 82,000 acres in Alabama,
145,000 acres in Georgia, and 63,000 acres in West Virginia, and will continue to function
as forestland under new ownership. The company will work with potential buyers to
ensure that the land continues to be managed sustainably through the Sustainable Foresery
Initiative (SFI}). MeadWestvaco will retain strategic fiber supply agreements to support its
mills in Alabama and Virginia. Addirional plans are being finalized to further maximize
value from our forestlands.

Certain statements in this document and elsewhere by management of the company that
are neither reported financial results nor other historical information are “forward-looking
statements” wichin the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Refer to the “Forward-looking Statements” section later in this document,
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LiQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash generated from operations provided the major source of funds for the company in

2006. The primary use of funds in 2006 was the acquisition of Calmar, a leading global
manufacturer of high-quality and innovative plastic dispensing and spraying systems. As
disclosed in Note P of Notes to Financial Statements, the purchase price for Calmar was
£714 million, of which $374 million was paid in cash and the remaining $340 million was
financed through commercial paper borrowings. Of the $340 million in initial borrowings,
approximately $190 million was paid down as of December 31, 2006, During 2005,
proceeds of $2.2 billion from the sale of nonstrategic assets provided a major source of
funds for the company. Cash and cash equivalents toraled $156 million at December 31,
2006, compared to $297 million at December 31, 2005.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES Cash provided by continuing operations was $567 mitlion in 2006,
compared ro $305 million in 2005 and $633 million in 2004. The increase in operating
cash low in 2006 was primarily attributable to cash provided by changes in working capital
of $129 million in 2006, compared to cash used by changes in working capital in 2005 of
$271 million. Included in 2005 cash flow from working capiral changes was approximately
$160 million in tax payments related co the sale of the printing and writing papers business.
Sce Note Q of Notes to Financial Statements for further discussion relating ro changes in
current assets and liabilities, Net income from continuing operations was $93 million,
$119 million and $224 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. There was no cash
flow from discontinued operations in 2006, compared to cash used by discontinued
operations of $78 million in 2005 and cash provided by discontinued operations of $289
million in 2004.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES Cash used in investing activitics was $761 million in 2006,
compared to cash provided by investing activities of $2 billion in 2005 and cash used in
investing activities of $207 million in 2004. The primary use of funds in 2006 was the
acquisition of Calmar for $714 million, while cthe primary source of funds in 2005 was
proceeds of $2.2 billion from the sale of the printing and writing papers business. Capital
spending toraled $302 million in 2006, compared to $305 million in 2005 and $317
million in 2004. Management anticipates thar capital spending will be abour $360 million
in 2007. Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense is expected to be about $525
miilion in 2007,

During 2006, we acquired Calmar, a leading global manufacturer of high-quality and
innovative plastic dispensing and spraying systems, with manufacturing facilities in North
America, Europe, Latin America and Asia. Druring 2005, we acquired DZN, The Dcsign
Group, a full service design and marketing company which will enhance MeadWestvaco's
package design capabilitics, enabling the company to provide a more competitive and
comprehensive set of creative design services. During 2004, we acquired Aries Packaging,
a machinery systems company which supports the company’s dairy packaging systems
business in Europe, and Tilibra, a manufacturer of school, office and time-management
stationery products in Brazil.
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Asset sales, including sales of forestlands, generated $165 million of proceeds in 2006
compared 1o $109 million in 2005 and $281 million in 2004. Proceeds of the sale of a debt
security generated $109 million of cash in 2006.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Cash provided by financing activities was $35 million during
2006, compared to cash used in financing activities of $2.2 billion during 2005 and $672
million during 2004, In 2003, proceeds received from the sale of the company's printing
and writing papers business were used to retire approximartely $1 billion in debr and
repurchase approximately 24 million shares of outstanding common stock ar a cost of $700
million. All of the repurchased shares of common stock were retired. In Ocrober 2003,
the company’s Board of Directors authorized the future repurchase of an additional five
million shares primarily to avoid dilution of earnings per share relating to employee equity
awards. In 2006, the company repurchased and retired 1.3 million shares, relared to an
obligation under a share put option ro the former owner of a subsidiary. The cash impact
of this transaction was approximately $47 million. The 1.3 million shares repurchased
under the pur option were not a reduction of the share repurchases auchorized by the
Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2000, the company had a $750 million bank credit facility thar
expires in December 2019, Borrowings under this agreement can be in unsecured domestic
or eurodollar notes and ar rates approximating prime or the London Interbank Offered Rare

(LIBOR) ar the company’s option. The $750 million credit agreement contains a financial
covenant limiting the percentage of total debt ro total capitalization (including deferred
taxes} to 55% as well as certain other covenancs with which the company is in compliance,
The company’s commercial paper program is supported by its $750 million revolving credit
facility which was undrawn ac December 31, 2006. The company had $148 million of
commercial paper borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006,

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the company had $211 million and $13 million
of notes payable and current marurities of long-term debt. There were $148 million of
commercial paper borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006, and no commercial
paper borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004, The maximum amounts
of combined commercial paper outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, were $355 million, $115 million and $53 million, respectively. The average
amount of commercial paper outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, was $136 million, $1 million and $4 million, respectively, with an average
interest rate of 5.5%, 3.1% and 1.4%, respectively. In the past, these borrowings funded
seasonal increases in inventory and receivables ar the company's Packaging Resources,
Consumer Solutiens and Consumer and Office Products segments. At December 31, 2006
and 2005, approximately 22% and 15% of the company’s debt was variable rate, after
factoring in the company’s interest-rate swaps, respectively. The weighted average interest
rate on the company’s variable-rate debt was approximately 5.3% in 2006, compared to 4.9%
in 2005. The percentage of debr to 1oral .capital was 42.29% and 41.1% at December 31,
2006 and 2003, respectively.
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In the peried from January 1, 2007 to February 1, 2007, the holders of the company’s
6.84% debentures, due 2037, were entitled to elect early repayment, in whole or in part,
at 100% of the principal amount outstanding. Holders elected carly repayment of $45
million, which will be paid by the company on March 1, 2007, and the repayment amount
is included in current maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2006.

in 2006, the Board of Directors declared dividends of $0.92 per share, paying a
total of $167 million of dividends to shareholders in 2006. During 2005 and 2004, the
company paid $178 million and $186 million, respectively, of dividends to shareholders.
On January 23, 2007, the company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.23 per share payable
on March 1, 2007 1o stockholders of record at the close of business on February 2, 2007.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION Prices for energy, including natural gas, oil and electricity, and input
costs for certain raw matertals and freight, increased significantly in 2006 and 2005. The
increase in these costs affected many of the company’s businesses. During 2006, the pre-tax
input cost of energy, raw materials and freight was approximarely $159 million higher
than in 2005. During 2005, the pre-tax input cost of energy, raw materials and freight was
approximately $150 million higher than in 2004.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND LEGAL MATTERS Qur operations are subject to extensive regulation by
federal, state and local authorities, as well as regularory autherities with jurisdiction over
foreign operations of the company. Due to changes in environmental laws and regulations,
the application of such regulacions, and changes in environmental control technology, it

is not possible for us to predict with certainty the amount of capital expenditures to be
incurred for environmental purposes. Taking these uncerrainties inte account, we estimate
that we will incur approximarely $19 million in environmental capital expenditures in
2007 and approximately 327 million in 2008. Approximately $34 million was spent on
environmental capital projects in 2006.

We have been notified by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) or by
various state or local governments that we may be liable under federal environmental laws
or under applicable state or local laws with respect to the cleanup of hazardous substances
at sites previously operated or used by the company. The company is currently named as a
potentially responsible patty (“PRP”), or has received third-party requests for contribution
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
{CERCLA) and similar state or local laws with respect to numerous sites. There are other
sites which may contain contamination or which may be potential Superfund sites, but
for which MeadWestvaco has not received any notice or claim. The potential liability for
all these sites will depend upon several factors, including the extent of contamination,
the method of remediation, insurance coverage and contribution by other PRPs. The
company regularly evaluares irs potential liability at these various sites. At December 31,
2006, MeadWestvaco had recorded liabilities of approximarely $22 million for estimarted
potential cleanup costs based upon its close monitoring of ongoing activities and its past
expertence with these matters. The company believes that it is reasonably possible that
costs associated with these sites may exceed amounts of recorded liabilities by an amount
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that could range from an insignificant amount to as much as $20 million. This estimate is
less certain than the estimate upon which the environmental liabilities were based. After
consulting with legal counsel and after considering established liabilities, it is our judgment
that the resolution of pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have 2 material
adverse effect on the company’s consolidared financial condition or liquidity. In any given
period or periods, however, 1t is possible such proceedings or mateers could have a material
effect on the results of operations.

As with numerous other large industrial companies, the company has been named a
defendant in asbestos-related personal injury licigation. Typically, these suits also name many
other corporate defendants. All of the claims against the company resolved to date have
been concluded before trial, either through dismissal or through settlement with payments
to the plaintiff that are not marterial to the company. To date, the costs resulting from
the litigadion, including settlement costs, have not been significant. As of December 31,
2006, there were approximately 330 lawsuits, Management believes that the company
has substantial indemnification protection and insurance coverage, subject to applicable
deducribles and policy limirts, with respect to asbestos claims. The company has valid
defenses to these claims and intends to continue to defend them vigorously. Addirionally,
based on its historical experience in asbestos cases and an analysis of the current cases,
the company believes that it has adequate amounts accrued for potential setelements and
judgments in asbestos-related litigation. At December 31, 2006, the company had recorded
licigation liabilities of approximately $22 million, a significant pordion of which relates
to asbestos. Should the volume of litigation grow substantially, it is possible that the
company could incur significant costs resolving these cases. After consulting with legal
counsel and after considering established liabilities, it is our judgment thart the resolution
of pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a marerial adverse effect on
the company’s consolidated financial condition or liquidity. In any given period or periods,
however, it is possible such proceedings or matters could have a marerial effect on the
results of operations.

The company is involved in various other litigation and administrative proceedings
arising in the normal course of business. Although the ultimate outcome of such matters
cannor be predicted with certainty, management does not believe that the currencdly
expected outcome of any marter, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened, or all
of them combined, will have a material adverse ¢ffect on the company's censolidated
financial condition or liquidity. In any given period or periods, however, it is possible such
proceedings or matters could have a marerial effect on the results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTEREST RATES It is management’s objective to manage its interest expense through a
blend of fixed and Hloating interest rate instruments. The company primarily funds irself
with long-term debr, having final maruricies ranging fram two 1o 40 years at date of issue,
a portion of which has variable interest rates, and with variable interest rate commercial
paper. The company uses interest-rate swaps in managing its mix of fixed and floating race
debt. See Note G of Notes to Financial Statements for further information.

FOREIGN CURRENCY The company has foreign-based operacions, primartly in Brazil,
Canada, Mexico, Europe and Asia, which accounted for approximately 28% of its 2006
net sales. In addition, certain of the company’s domestic operations have sales to foreign
customers. In the conduct of its foreign operations, the company also makes intercompany
sales and receives royalties and dividends denominaced in many different currencies. All of
this exposes the company to the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Flows of foreign currencies into and out of the company’s domestic operations are
generally stable and regularly occurring and are recorded at fair market value in the
company’s financial statements. The company’s foreign currency management policy
permits it o enter into foreign currency hedges when chese Rows exceed a threshold,
which is a function of these cash flows and forecasted annual operations, During 2006,
the company entered into foreign currency hedges to partially offset the foreign currency
impact of these Hows on operating income. See Note G of Notes to Financial Statements
for further information.

The company also issues intercompany leans to its foreign subsidiaries in their local
currencies, exposing it to the effect of changes in spot exchange rates berween loan issue
and loan repayment dates. Generally, management uses foreign-exchange hedge contracrs
with terms of less than one year to hedge these exposures. When applied to the company’s
derivative and other foreign currency sensitive inscruments at December 31, 2006, a
10% adverse change in currency rates would have about a $14 million effect on the
company’s resules,

NATURAL GAS In order to better predict and control the future cosc of natural gas consumed
at the company's mills and plants, the company engages in financial hedging of future gas
purchase prices. Gas usage is relatively predictable month-by-month. The company “locks
in” the cost of a portion of its fucture natural gas usage by entering inta swap agreements.
See Note G of Notes to Financial Statements for further information,
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS The company enters into various conrracrual obligations
throughourt the year. Presented below are the contractual obligations of the company as
of December 31, 2006, and the time period in which payments under the obligations are
due. Disclosures related to long-term debt, capital lease obligations and operating lease
obligations ate included in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements of the
company. Also included below are disclosures regarding the amounts due under purchase
obligations. Purchase obligation is defined as an agreemenrt to purchase goods or services
that is enforceable and legally binding on the company and thar specifies all significant
terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable
price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction.

The company has included in the disclosure below all normal and recurring purchase
orders, take-or-pay contracts, supply arrangements as well as other purchase commirments
that management believes meet the definition of purchase obligations above.

Payments due by period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

1 year years years 5 years

2008 and 2010 and 2012 and

In millions Total 2007 2009 2011 bevond
Contractual obligations:

Debt $2,521 $ 211 $ 83 $ 30 $2,197

Interest on debt 2,834 176 347 337 1,974

Capital lease obligations 164 4 9 8 143

Operating leases 222 52 74 50 45

Purchase obligations 851 649 123 63 16

Other long-term obligations 738 - 168 149 421

Total $7,330 $1,092 $804 $637 $4,797

On January 11, 2007, the company entered into a lease agteement with a third party pursuant
to which the company will lease a facility for its corporate headquarters in Richmond,
Virginia with an initial term of 13.5 years. It is expected that the lease commencement date
will be in the third quarter of 2009, after abour a two-year construction period. The annual
minimum rental payments associated with this agreement, which will depend largely in part
on the final cost of the facility and the amount of square footage leased, are estimated to be
between $9 million and $10 million, beginning in the secand half of 2009. The estimared
minimum lease payments associated with this agreement are not included in the above

table, as such rable reflects contractual obligations entered into by the company on or before
December 31, 2006.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 For the year ended December 31, 2006, Mead Westvaco
recorded total pre-tax charges of $133 million for asset writedowns, facility closures and
employee separation costs, of which $53 million, $60 million and $20 million were recorded
within cost of sales, selling, general and administrarive expenses, and other income, net,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2006 the company recorded total pre-tax charges of
$53 million of which $16 million, $26 million and $11 million were recorded within cost of
sales, selling, general and administrative expenses, and other income, net, tespectively.

Although these charges relared ro individual segments, such amounts are reflected in
corporate and other for segment reporting purposes.

The following table and discussion present additional detail of the 2006 charges by
business segment:

Asset
wriledowns and Emnployee
In milligns other costs costs Total
Packaging Resources $25 52 327
Consumer Solutions 5 25 30
Consumer and Office Products 4 4 8
All other 49 18 68
$83 550 $133

Packaging Resources: During the year, the company incurred charges of $27 million for
asset writedowns, employee separation costs and various other restructuring activities in
its packaging operarions in the U.S. The charges included employec separation costs of
$2 million related to approximately 40 employces. All of the affected employees will be
separated by che end of 2007. The remaining $25 million related to asset impairments.

Consumer Solutions: During the year, the company incurred charges of $30 million
for asset writedowns, employee separation costs and other restructuring costs related to
the closing of a packaging converting plant in the U.S. and various other restructuring
activities in its packaging converting operations in the U.S. and Europe. The charges
include separation costs of $25 million related 1o approximarely 860 employees. The
majority of the affected employees had separated from the company by December 31,
2006, and the remaining employees will be scparated by the end of 2007, The remaining
$5 million included asset writedowns and other facility closure-related costs.
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Consumer and Office Products: During the year, the company incurred charges of $8 million
for asset writedowns, employec separation costs and other restructuring costs incurred

in connection with various restructuring activities in its consumer and office products
manufacturing operations in Norch America. The charges included employee separation
costs of $4 million, related to approximately 150 employees, and $4 million for asser
writedowns including asset impairments and other costs. The majority of the affected
employees had separated from the company by December 31, 2006, and the remaining
employees will be separated by the end of 2007.

All peher: During the year, the company also recorded charges of approximartely $19
million related to employee separation costs covering approximately 290 employees. The
majority of the affected employees had separated from the company by December 31,
2006, and the remaining employees will be separated by the end of 2007. Additionally, the
company incurred charges of $49 million in connection with asset impairments, charges
associated with ceased-use facilities and a write-down of an equity investment,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 For the year ended December 31, 2005, Mead Westvaco
recorded total pre-tax charges of $29 million for asset writedowns, facility closures and
employee separation costs, of which $18 million and $11 million were recorded within cost
of sales and selling, general and adminiscration expenses, respectively. Of these charges,

$9 million related to the company’s productivity initiative and $20 million related to its
cost initiative. These charges included the closing of a Consumer Solutions converting plant
in the U.S. and various other restructuring activities in the Packaging Resources, Consumer
Solutions and Consumer and Office Products operations in the U.S. and Europe, including
asset impairments and employee separation costs covering approximately 300 employees.
The company also recorded employee separation charges of $6 million in corporate and
other covering approximately 190 employees. As of December 31, 2006, actions related to
these charges were substantially paid. Alchough the charges were not recorded as part of
segment results, $3 million related to the Packaging Resources segment, $11 million to the
Consumer Solutions segment, $8 million to the Consumer and Qffice Products segment,
and $9 million to corporate and other. Additionally, in 2005, the company sold previously
written-down Consumer and Office Products assets, resulting in a gain of $2 million,
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 For the year ended December 31, 2004, Mead Westvaco
recorded total pre-tax charges of $100 million for asset writedowns, facility closures and
employee separation costs, of which $89 million and $11 million were recorded within cost
of sales and sclling, general and administrative expenses, respectively. The charges related
primarily to the closing of a domestic packaging systems planc and various consolidation
activities in the company’s packaging facilities, primarily in Europe; actions taken to
consolidate the consumer and office products operations in North America and close
several facilities; and the reorganizarion of corporare functions and ocher business units.
As of December 31, 2003, all of the actions related 1o these charges were complete, and
the accruals for employee and other costs were substantially utilized. Although the charges
were not recorded as part of segment results, $1 million relared to the Packaging Resources
segment, $38 million to the Consumer Solutions segment, $45 million to the Consumer
and Office Products segment, and $16 million to corporate and other. Additionally, in
2004, the company sold a previously written-down corporate asset, resulting in a gain of
$2 million.

ACQUISITION On July 5. 2006, the company completed its acquisition of Calmar from
Compagnie de Saint-Gobain. Calmar is a leading global manufacturer of high-quality and
innovative plastic dispensing and spraying systems, with manufacturing facilities in North
America, Europe, Lacin America and Asia. The business generates sales in 43 countries and
employs approximately 2,700 people worldwide.

The base purchase price at the date of acquisition was $710 million in cash in exchange
for the stock of various Calmar entities, and was subject to adjustment for cash received,
debrt assumed and certain minor items. Excluding cash acquired. the adjusted purchase price
including direct transaction costs was $714 million. The results of Calmar are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date and are included in the
company's Consumer Solutions segment.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS In connection with the sale of the company’s printing and
writing papers business that occurred in 2005, the company recorded an after-tax loss from
discontinued operarions for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 of $91 million
and $573 million, respectively. Results in 2003 and 2004 were negatively impacted by sale-
related costs, including lease terminacion charges, asser impairments, debr extinguishment
costs, pension sertlement and currailment losses, and other related costs included in
discontinued operations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our principal accounting policies are described in the Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies included in the Notes to Financial Statements. The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimartes and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of some assets and liabilities and, in some
instances, the reparted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual resules could differ from these estimates. Management believes the accounting
policies discussed below represent those accounting policies requiring the exercise of
judgment where 2 different set of judgments could result in the greatest changes to reported
tesults. Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting
estimares with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Audit Commitree
has reviewed the company's disclosure.

Enviranmental and legal liabilities: We record accruals for estimared environmental
liabilities when remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.
These estimates reflect assumptions and judgments as to the probable nature, magnicude
and timing of required investigation, remediation and monitoring activities, as well as
availability of insurance coverage and contribution by other potentially responsible parries.
Due to the numerous uncertainties and variables associared with chese assumptions and
judgments, and changes in governmental regulations and environmental rechnologies,
accruals are subject to substantial uncerrainties, and actual costs could be materially greater
or less than the estimated amounts. We record accruals for other legal contingencies, which
are also subject to numerous uncerrainties and variables associated with assumptions
and judgments, when the loss is probable and reasonably estimable. Liabilities recorded
for claims are limited 1o pending cases based on the company’s historical experience,
consulration with outside counsel and consultation with an actuarial specialist concerning
the feasibility of reasonably estimating liabilities associated with claims that may arise in
the future. We recognize insurance recoveries when collection is reasonably assured.

Restructuring and other charges: We periodically record charges for the reduction of our
workforce, the closure of manufacturing facilities and other actions related to business
improvement and producrivity initiatives. These events require estimartes of liabilities for
employee separation payments and related benefits, demolition, environmental cleznup and
other costs, which ceuld differ from acrual costs incurred.

Pension and postretirement benefits: In August 2006, the President signed into law the
Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PPA). The PPA establishes new minimum funding rules
for defined benefit pension plans beginning in 2008. The company does not anticipate any
required funding to the U.S. qualified retirement plans in the foreseeable future 25 a result
of this legislacion and due ro the overfunded status of the plans,
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan in its balance sheet and to
recognize the changes in the plan’s funded status in comprehensive income in the year

in which the change occurs. These provisions of the Statement are effective as of the end
of the first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. SFAS No. 158 also requires an
employer to measure the funded stacus of 2 plan as of the date of its fiscal year end, which
is consistent with the company’s measurement date. The impact of adopting SFAS No. 158
as of December 31, 2006 was an increase to accumulated other comprehensive loss in the
amount of $57 million, net of tax, which principally represents the impact of recognizing
previously unrecognized prior service cost and net actuarial tosses.

Assumprions used in the determinarion of net pension cost and postretirement benefit
expense, including the discount rate, the expected return on plan assets, and increases in
future compensarion and medical costs, are cvaluated by the company, reviewed with the
plan actuaries annually and updated as appropriate. Actual asser rerurns and compensation
and medical costs, which are more favorable than assumptions, can have the effect of
lowering expense and cash contributions, and, conversely, actual results, which are less
favorable than assumptions, could increase expense and cash contributions. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, actual results that differ from assumptions
are accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore, affect expense in such
future periods.

In 2006, the company recorded pre-rax pension income for continuing operations,
before settlements, curtailments and cermination benefits, of $50 million compared w
$67 million in 2005. The company currently estimates overall pre-tax pension income in
2007 will increase by approximately $3 million, primarily atrributable to an increase in
the discount rate. The estimate assumes a long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.50%,
and a discount rate of 5.75%. If the expecred race of return on plan assets were 1w change
by .59, annual pension income in 2007 would change by approximately $38 million.
Similarly, if the discount rate were to change by .5%. annual pension income would change
by approximarely $36 million.

At December 31, 2006, the aggregate value of pension fund assets had increased o
$3.4 billion from $3.2 hillion at December 31, 2005, reflecting overall equity marker
performance.
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Prior service cost and actuarial gains and losses in the retirement and postretirement benefis
plans subject to amortization are amortized over the average remaining service periods,
which are about 11 years and 6 years, respectively, and are 2 component of accumulated
other comprehensive loss. In 2004, the company modified certain postretirement healthcare
benefits to be provided to future retirees. This change reduced the postretirement benefit
obligation by approximately $68 million, and is being amortized over the remaining life of
the cligible employees, which is approximarely 24 years.

Long-lived assets

Useful lives: Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets are based on management's
estimates of the periods over which the assets will be productively utilized in the revenue-
generation process ot for other useful purposes. Factors thar affect the determination of lives
include prior experience with similar assets, producrt life expectations and industry practices.
The determination of useful lives diccates the period over which rangible and intangible
long-lived assets are depreciated or amortized, rypically using the straight-line method.

Tangible assers: We review long-lived assets other than goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Tmpairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets. The Statement requires chat long-lived assers
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thar the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The review for impairment involves
management to predict the estimated cash Hows thac will be generated by the long-lived
asset over its remaining estimarted useful life. Considerable judgment must be exercised as
to determining future cash flows and their timing and, possibly, chaosing business value
comparables or selecting discount rates to use in any value compurarions.

Intangible assets: Business acquisitions often result in recording intangible assets.
Intangible assets are recognized at the time of an acquisition, based upon their fair vatue.
Similar to long-lived tangible assers, intangible assets are subjecr 1o periodic impairment
reviews whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. As with tangible assets, considerable judgment must be
exercised.

Goodwill: Goodwill arises in business combinations when the purchase price of assets
acquired exceeds the appraised value. As with tangible and other intangible assers, periodic
impairment reviews are required, at least annually, as well as when events or circumstances
change. As with its review of impairment of tangible and intangible assets, management
uses judgment in assessing goodwill for impairment. We will review the recorded value of
our goodwill annually in the fourth quarter or sooner, if events or changes in circumsrances
indicate chat the carrying amount may exceed fair value. The review for impairment involves
management to predict the estimated cash flows that will be gencrated by the long-lived
asset over its remaining estimared useful life. Considerable judgment must be exercised
in determining future cash flows and their timing and, possibly, choosing business value
comparables or selecting discount rates to be used in any value computations.
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Revenue recognition: We recognize revenue at the point when title and che risk of ownership
passes to the customer. Substantially all of our revenues are generated chrough product
sales, and shipping terms generally indicare when title and the risk of ownership have
passed. Revenue is recognized at shipment for sales when shipping terms are FOB (free

on board) shipping point. For sales where shipping terms are FOB destination, revenue

is recognized when the goods are received by the customer. We provide for all allowances
for estimated recurns and other customer credits such as discounrs and volume rebares,
when the revenue is recognized, based on historical experience, current trends and any
notification of pending recurns. The customer allowances are, in many instances, subjective
and are decermined with significant management judgment and are reviewed regularly to
determine the adequacy of the amounts. Changes in econemic conditions, markets and
customer relationships may require adjustments to these allowances from period ro period.
Also included in net sales is service revenue which is recognized as the service is performed.
Revenue is recognized for leased equipment to customers on a straight-line basis over the
estimated term of the lease and is included in net sales of the company.

Income taxes: Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, which recognizes deferred rax assets and liabilities based on the
estimated future tax effects of differences hetween the financial statement and rax basis of
assers and liabilities given the enacred rax laws.

We evaluate the need for a deferred tax asset valuation allowance by assessing whether
it is more likely than not chat the company will realize its deferred tax assets in the
future. The assessment of whether or not a valuation allowance is required often requires
significant judgment, including the forecast of fueure taxable income and the valuation of
tax planning initiatives. Adjustments to the deferred tax valuation allowance are made to
carnings in the period when such assessment is made.

The company has tax jurisdictions locared in many areas of the world and is subject
to audit in these jurisdictions. Tax audits by their nature are often complex and can
require several years to resolve. In the preparation of the company’s financial statements,
management cxercises judgments in estimating the potential exposure to unresolved tax
matters. While acrual results could vary, in management’s judgment, the company has
adequare accruals with respect 1o the ultimare outcome of such unresolved tax marters.

Each quarter, management must estimate our effective tax rate for the full year. This
estimate includes assumptions about the level of income thar will be achieved for the full
year in both our domestic and internarional operations. The forecast of full-year earnings
includes assumprions about markets in each of our businesses as well as the timing of
cerrain transacrions, including forestland sales gains and restrucruring charges. Should
business performance or the timing of certain transactions change during the year, the level
of income achieved may not meet the level of income estimated earlier in the year atinterim
periods. This change in the income levels and mix of carnings can result in significant
adjustments to the rax provision in the quarter in which the estimate is refined.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-revised
2004 (SFAS No. 123R}), Share-Based Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting
far Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board {APB) Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SEAS No. 123R requires the measurement
of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options, using a fair-value-based method and the recording of such expense in the
consolidated statements of operations. The accounting provisions of SFAS No. 123R

are required to be applied no later chan the beginning of the first Ascal year beginning
after June 15, 2005. The company adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006,
using the modified prospective method. This Statement requires the recognition of
compensation expense when an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions. Under this new Statement, pre-tax share-based compensation for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $21 million, including the incremental pre-tax cost of $10
million, relating to stock options and stock appreciation rights. The incremental impact
was a reduction to net income of $6 million, or earnings per share of $0.03, net of tax.
Substantially all of this compensation expense is recorded as a component of selling,
general and administrative expenses.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Bused Payment (SAB No. 107}. SAB No. 107 addresses
the interaction berween SFAS No. 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations and provides
the SEC staff's views regarding the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for
public companies. The company followed the interpretive guidance set forch in SAB
No. 107 during its adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Acconnting Changes and Error
Corrections, which replaces APB Opinions No. 20, Accounting Changes and SFAS No. 3,
Reporting Accounsing Changes in Interim Financial Statements - An Amendment of APB
Opinion No. 28. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reparting of
accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes recrospective application, unless
impracticable, as the required methed for reporting a change in accounring principle and
the reporting of a correction of an error and for reporting a change when retrospective
application is impracricable. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005, and was
adepted by the company in the first quarter of 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 did
not have an impact on the company’s consolidated financial starements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
tn the financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement atrribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return, It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penaltics,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This Interprerarion is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The cumulative effects, if any, of applying
FIN 48 will be recarded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the
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period of adoption. The company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of
FIN 48 will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition and is not
yet in a position 1o determine such effecs.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS
No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements, but applies to existing accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurement as the relevant measurement attribuce. This Statement is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The company has not yer determined the
impace of adopting this standard.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Emp!ayers'Acrounringﬁr Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded
or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretiremenc plan in its balance sheet and
to recognize the changes in the plan’s funded status in comprehensive income in the year
in which the change occurs. These provisions of the Statement are effective as of the end
of the first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. SFAS No. 158 also requires an
employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its fiscal year end, which
is the company’s measurement date. Pursuant to the Statement’s adoption, the net after-
tax charge to accumulated other comprehensive loss in the fourth quarter of 2006 was $57
million. This adjustment principally represents the recognition of previously unrecognized
prior service costs and net actuarial losses and the impact of recording additional minimum
liabilities for certain under-funded plans. This Statement will not affect the company’s
ERISA funding obligations and we do not currently anticipate any required company
contributions to the qualified retirement plans in the foresecable future.

In Seprember 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering
the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements {SAB No. 108). SAB No, 108 requires that public companies utilize
a “dual-approach” to assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatemencs. This
dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment and a balance sheet
focused assessment. The guidance in SAB No. 108 must be applied to 2nnual financial
statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108
did not have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

There were no other new accounting standards issued in 2006 that had or are expected
to have a material impact on the company's financial position or results of operations.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this document and elsewhere by management of the company that
are neither reported financial results nor other historical information are “forward-locking
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Acr of 1995.
Such information includes, without limitation, the business outlook, assessment of marker
condirions, anticipated financial and operating results, strategies, future plans, contingencies
and contemplated transactions of the company. Such forward-looking statements are

not guarantees of future performance and are subject to known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may cause or contribute to actual results of company
operations, or the performance or achievements of each company, or industry resulrs, 1o
differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statemenrs. In
addition to any such risks, uncertainties and other facrors discussed elsewhere herein, risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause or contribute to actual results differing
materiaily from those expressed or implied for the forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to, events or circumstances which affect the ability of MeadWestvaco to
realize improvements in operating earnings expected from the company’s cost reduction
initiative; competitive pricing for the company’s products; changes in raw materials pricing;
energy and other costs; fluctuations in demand and changes in production capacities;
changes to ecconomic growth in the United States and international economies; government
policies and regulations, including, buc not limited to those affecting the environment
and the tobacco industry; the company’s continued ability to reach agreement with its
unionized employees on collective bargaining agreements; adverse results in current or
future litigation; currency movements; and other risk facrors discussed in the company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, and in other filings
made from time to time with the SEC. MeadWestvaco undertakes no obligation to publicly
update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise. Investors are advised, however, ta consult any further disclosures made on
related subjects in the company’s reports filed with the SEC.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31

In millions, except per share data 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $6.530 $6,170 $6,060
Cost of sales 5,399 5087 4925
Selling, general and administrative expenses 905 756 800
Interest expense 211 208 209
Other income, net (83) (16} (197)
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes 98 135 323

Income lax provisicn 5 16 99
Income from continuing operations 93 119 224
Discontinued operations (91 {573)
Net income {loss} $ 93 $ 28 $ (349}
Income (loss) per share - basic:

Income from continuing operations S 052 $ 062 $1.11

Discontinued operatiens (0.48) (2.84)
Net income {loss) $ 052 $ 014 $(1.73)
Income (loss) per share - diluted:

Income from continuing operations $ 052 $ 062 $ 1.10

Discontinued operations - (0.48) (2.82)
Net income (loss) % 0.52 $ 014 $(1.72)
Shares used to compute net income (loss) per share:

Basic 180.8 191.7 2019
Diluted 1812 1927 2036

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

MeadWestvace Corporation and consolidated subsidiary companies
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Years ended December 31

In millions, except share and per share data 2006 2005
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 156 $ 297
Accounts receivable, net 1,011 922
Inventories 715 714
Other current assets 133 97
Current assets 2,015 2,030
Property, plant, equipment and forestlands, net 4523 4,487
Prepaid pension asset 920 994
Goodwill 851 559
Other assets 976 838
$9,285 $8,908
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHCOLDERS' EQUITY
Accounts payabile $ Bh2 $ 416
Accrued expenses 702 613
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt 211 13
Current liakilities 1,465 1,042
Long-term debt 2372 2,417
Other long-term obligations 738 814
Deferred income taxes 1,177 1,152
Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par
Shares authorized: 600,000,000
Shares issued and outstanding: 182,107,136 (2006 - 181,418,672} 2 2
Additional paid-in capital 3.370 3,294
Retained earnings 168 243
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {7) {56)
3,533 3,483
$9,285 $8,908

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements.
MeadWestvaco Corporation and consolidated subsidiary companies
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Qutstanding Common

In millions

shares stock

Balance at December 31, 2003
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss
Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Comprehensive loss
Tax benefit an nengualified stock options
Cash dividends
Restricted stock grants issued
Unamortized restricted stock
Exercise of stock options

200.9 $2

0.2 -

2.8 -

Balance at December 31, 2004
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income
Fareign currency translation
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net
Unrealized loss on investment in debt security, net

Comprehensive income

Tax benefit on nongualified stock options
Cash dividends

Foreign operations concurrent reporting
Restricted stock grants issued

Stock repurchased

Share put option

Unamortized restricted stock

Exercise of stock options

Balance at December 31, 2005
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income
Foretgn currency translation
Minimum pension hability adjustment
Urrealized loss on derivative instrumants, nat
Reversal of unrealized loss on investment in debt security, net

Comprehensive income

Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158

Tax benefit on nengualified stock options \
Cash dividends

Foreign operations concurrent reparting
Share-based employee compensation

Share put opiion

Exercise of stock eptions

Balance at December 31, 2006

203.9 2

0.3 -
(23.9) -
(C.3) -

1.4 -

181.4 2

182.1 $2

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
MeadWestvaco Corporation and consolidated subsidiary companies
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Additional Accumulated other Totai
paid-in Retained comprehensive shareholders’
capital earnings loss equity
$3,870 $ 929 $(88) $4.713

- (349) - (349)

- - 60 60

- - (3) (3)
(292}

6 - - 6

- (186) - (186}

8 - - 8
(6) - - (6)
74 - - 74
3,952 394 (31 4,317
- 28 - 28

- - (20) (20)

- - 2 2

- - 2 2

- - (9) {9

3

2 - - 2

- {178) - {178)

- (1) - (n

8 - - B
(7oL - - {701)
(3) - - (3)
36 - - 36
3,294 243 (56} 3,483
- 93 - 93

- - 109 109

- - {7) (7

- - {5) (5

- - 9 9
199

- - (57) (57)

2 - - 2

- (167) - (167)

- {1) - (1)

21 - - 21
53 - - 53
$3.370 $ 168 & (7) $3,533
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss} $ a3 $ 28 $(349}
Discontinued operations - 91 573

Adjustments tc reconcile net income (loss}
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, deplet:on and amaortization 517 491 489
Deferred income taxes (56) (17} 58
Gain on sales of assels (60) (56} (165)
Gain on sale of debt security 21 - -
Loss on early retirement of long-term debt - a0 1
Pension income before settlements, curtailments

and termination benefits (50 (67) {86)
Impairment of long-lived assets 43 10 35
Appreciation of cash surrender value policies (32) {12) (13)
Changes in working capital, excluding the

effects of acquisitions and disposttions 129 {271) 78
Other, net 4 18 12

Net cash provided by operaling activities

of continuing operations 567 305 633
Discontinued operations - (78) 289
Net cash provided by operating activities 567 227 922
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additicns to property, plant and equipment (302 (305) (317)
Payments for acquired businesses,
net of cash acgquired {714) (5) (101)
Proceeds from sale of a business - 2,186 -
Proceeds from sale of debt securily 109 - -
Proceeds from dispositions of assets 165 109 281
Purchase of short-term investments - - (701)
Sale of short-term investments - 5 706
Other (19} (73 (8)
Discontinued operations - 2 (67)
Net cash provided by {used in)
investing aclivities (761) 1,985 (207}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
MeadWestvaco Corporation and consolidated subsidiary companies
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, continued

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 7 1 2
Repayment of long-term debt (2} (1,133) (525)
Stock repurchased and put option 47 (711} -
Dividends paid (167} (178) (186)
Notes payable and other short-lerm borrowings, net 148 (19) (20)
Changes in book overdrafts 43 (14) 22
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

and exercises of stock options 53 36 74
Discontinued operations - {163) (3%

Met cash provided by {used in}
financing activities 35 (2,181) (672)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 18 {4) 12
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (141} 27 55
Cash and cash equivalents:

At beginning of period 297 270 215

At end of period $ 156 $ 297 $ 270
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of conselidation and preparation of financial stazements: The consolidated financial
statements include all majority-owned or conrrolled entidies, and all significant
intercompany transactions are climinated. During 2006 and 2005, cerrain foreign entities
reporred results using a November 30 year end. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, those
foreign entities converted to a reporting year end of December 31. The December 2006
and 2005 results associated with these entities were recorded directly to rerained earnings.
These changes had no macerial effect to the presentation of the financial statements.

Segment reporting: MeadWestvaco's principal business segments are (i) Packaging
Resources, (i1) Consumer Solutions, (i1i) Consumer and Office Products, and (iv) Specialty
Chemicals. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the company completed the change in s
management and operating structure such that its previously reported Packaging segment
was replaced by the Packaging Resources and Consumer Solutions segments. This segment
structure reflects the company’s internal reporting to its chief decision makers and aligns
the segment disclosure with management’s analysis of results of operations and the process
utilized ro allocate resources. The company has presented its reportabie segments for 2005
and 2004 to reflect the new reporting structure adopred in 2006.

Discontinued operarions: Effective April 30, 2005, the company completed the sale of irs
printing and writing papers business, including its coated and earbonless papers operations
consisting of five mills, and approximately 900,000 acres of related forestlands to an
affiliate of Cerberus Management LLC, a private investment firm. See Note P for further
information. 1n the quarter ended March 31, 2005, the company began reporting the
printing and writing papers business as a discontinued operation. The results for 2004 have
been presenced on a comparable basis.

Estimates and assumptions: The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of some assets and liabilities and, in some
instances, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimares.

Translation of foreign currencies: The local currency is the functional currency for
substantially all of the company’s significant operations outside the United States.

The assets and liabilities of the company’s foreign subsidiaries are translared into U.S.
dollars using period-end exchange rates, and adjustments resulting from these financial
statement translations are included in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss
in the consolidated balance sheets. Revenues and expenses are translated ar average rates
prevailing during the period.

Cash equivalents: Highly liquid securities with an original maturity of three months or
less are considered 1o be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounss: Trade accounts receivable are
recorded at the invoice amount and do noe bear interest. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is the company’s best estimare of the amount of probable credit losses in the
existing accounts receivable, The company determines the allowance based on historical

write-off experience by industry. Past due balances over a specificd amount are reviewed
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individually for collectibility. Account balances are charged off against the allowance when
it is probable that the receivable will not be recovered.

fnuentories: Inventories are valued art the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
using the last-in. first-out (LIFQ) method for substantially all raw materials, Ainished goods
and production materials of U.S. manufacturing operations. Cost of all other inventories,
including stores and supplies inventories and inventories of non-U.S. manufacturing
operations, is determined by the first-in, firs-out (FIFO) or average cost methods.

Property, plant, equipment and forestlands: Owned assets are recorded at cost. Also
included in the cost of these assets is interest on funds borrowed during the construction
period. When assers are sold, retired or disposed of, their cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in
cost of sales. Gains on the sales of forestland are recorded in other income, net. Costs of
renewals and berterments of properties are capiralized; costs of mainrenance and repairs are
charged to expense. Costs of reforestacion of forestlands are capitalized. These costs include
the costs of seedlings, site preparation, planting of seedlings and carly-stage fertilizarion.

Depreciation and depletion: The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated, urilizing
the straight-line method, over the estimated uscful lives of the assets, which range from
20 to 40 years for buildings and five to 30 years for machinery and equipment. Timber
is deplered as timber is cut at rates determined annually based on the relationship of
undepleted timber costs to the estimated volume of recoverable timber. Timber volumes
used in calculating depletion rates are based upon merchantable timber volumes at a
specific point in time. The depletion rates for company-owaned tand do not include an
estimate of either future reforestation costs associated with a stand’s final harvest or future
volume in connection with replanting of a stand subsequent to the final harvest.

Impairment of long-lived assets: The company periodically evaluates whether current
events or circumstances indicare thar the carrying value of its long-lived assets, including
intangible asscts, to be held and used may not be recoverable. If such circumstances are
determined to exist, an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows produced by the long-
lived asset, or the appropriate grouping of assets, is compared to the carrying value ro
determine whether an impairment exists. [fan asset is determined to be impaired, the loss
is measured based on quoted market prices in active markets, if available. If quoted marker
prices are not available, the estimate of fair value is based on various valuarion rechniques,
including a discounted value of estimated future cash flows. The company reports an asset
to be disposed of at the lower of its carrying valuc or its estimated net realizable value.

Goodwill: The company has classified as goodwill the excess of the acquisition cost over
the fair values of the net tangible and intangible assets of businesses acquired. The company
has determined its reporting units to be components within ics Packaging Resources,
Consumer Solutions, Consumer and Office Products and Specialty Chemicals segments. In
accordance with Starement of Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is required to be tested at least annually. SFAS
No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment using a two-step process. The first
step is to identify a potential impairment and the second step is to measure the amount
of the impairmene loss, if any. Goodwill is deemed o be impaired if the carrying amount
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NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its estimared fair value. See Note C and Note P for
further information,

Other assets: Capitalized software, equipment leased to customers and other amortizable
and indefinite-lived intangible assets are included in other assets, Capitalized software and
other amortizable intangibles are amortized using the straight-line and cash flows methods
over their escimarted useful lives of three to 21 years. Equipment leased to customers is
amortized using the sum-of-the-years-digits method over the estimared useful life of che
machine, generally 10 years. Revenue is recognized for the leased equipment on a scraighe-
line basis aver the life of the lease and is included in net sales. The company records
software development costs in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountanes’ Starement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Softiware
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. See Note C and Note D for furcher information.

Financial instruments: The company has, where appropriate, estimated che fair value
of financial instruments. These fair value amounts may be significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of cash How. Accordingly, the
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in
a current market exchange. Where these estimares approximate carrying value, no separate
disclosure of fair value is shown. The company urilizes well-defined financial derivatives in
the nermal course of its operations as a means 1 manage some of its interest rate, foreign
currency and commaodity risks. For those derivarive inscruments, the company has formally
designated cach as a hedge of specific and well-defined risks. See Note G for furcher
infuormation.

Investment in debe securities: Investments in debe securities are classified as either held
to maturicy, trading or available-for-sale in accordance with SFAS No. 113, Accounting for
Invesements in Debt and Equity Securities, as determined by management on an annual basis.
Those investments classified as trading or available-for-sale securicies shall be measured ar
fair value in the balance sheer. Unrealized gains or losses on trading securities are recorded
to the statement of operations. Unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities are
reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss unless it is determined thar a loss exists
and thart loss is determined as “other-than-temporary™ in accordance with Seaff Positions
No. 115-1 and SFAS No. 124-2, The Meaning of Other-than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investmentis.

Environmental and legal linbilities: Environmental expenditures that increase useful lives
of assers are capitalized, while other environmental expenditures are expensed. Liabilities
are recorded when remedial effores are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.
The company records accruals for other legal contingencies when loss is probable and
reasonably estimable. Liabilities recorded for claims are limited to pending cases based on
the company's histarical experience, consultation with outside counsel and consultarion
with an actuarial specialist concerning the feasibility of reasonably estimating liabilities
associated with claims that may arise in the future. The company recognizes insurance
recoveries when collection is reasonably assured. See Note O for further information.

Asset retivement obligations: The company records obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-Tived assets as liabilities when incurred. Subsequenr to initial
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measurement, the company recognizes changes in the amounts of the obligations, as
necessary, resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or amount
of estimated cash flows. Effective Diecember 31, 2005, the company adopred Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 47, Accounsing for Conditional Asset
Retivemens Obligations — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143 (FIN No. 47), which
clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation, as used in SFAS No. 143,
refers to a legal obligation to perform an asser reciremenc acrivity in which the timing and/
or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may er may not be wichin
the control of the entity, Thus, the timing andfor method of settlement may be conditional
on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value
of 2 conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimarted. The company has certain conditional and unconditional asset retirement
obligations associated with owned or leased property, plant and equipment, including
Yeases, surface impoundments, asbestos, and water supply wells. Management does not have
sufficient information to estimate the fair value of certain obligations, primarily associated
with surface impoundments and asbestos, because the settlement date or range of potential
serclement dates have not been specified and information is not available to apply expected
present value techniques.

Revenue recognition: The company recognizes revenues at the point when title and the
risk of ownership passes to the customer. Substantially all of the company’s revenues are
generated through producr sales and shipping terms generally indicate when ritle and the
risk of ownership have passed. Revenue is recognized at shipment for sales where shipping
terms are FOB (free on board) shipping point unless risk of loss is maintained under freight
rerms. For sales where shipping terms are FOB destination, revenue is recognized when
the goods are received by che customer. The company provides allowances for estimated
returns and other custcomer credits such as discounts and volume rebares, when the revenue
is recognized, based on historical experience, current trends and any notification of pending
recurns. Also included in net sales is service revenue which is recognized as the service is
performed. Revenue is recognized for leased cquipment to customers on a straight-line basis
over the estimared rerm of the lease and is included in net sales of the company.

Shipping and bandling costs: Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component
of cost of sales. Amounts billed ro a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and
handling are classified as revenue.

Research and development: Included in cost of sales and selling, general and
administrative expense are expenditures for research and development of approximarely $65
million, $50 million and $5% million for cthe years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively, which were expensed as incurred.

Income taxes: Deferred income taxes are recorded for temporary differences berween
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities reflect the enacred rax rares in effect for the years the differences
are expected to reverse. The company evaluates the need for a deferred tax asset valuation
allowance by assessing whether it is more likely than not that it will realize its deferred rax
assets in the furure.
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For tax-advantaged transactions, the rax benefics are recognized when it is probable that che
tax position will be sustained. Ortherwise, a tax contingency is recorded and classified in
other long-term liabilicies.

Share-based compensation: The company adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment,
as of January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective method and therefore, prior periods
were not restated. This Statement requires the recognition of compensation expense to
be measured based an the estimated fair value of the share-based awards and recognized
as expense over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. The
company has elected to record the expense for graded and cliff vesting awards on a straight-
line basis over che requisite service period. Substantially all of this compensation expense
is recorded as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses. Under this new
Statement, pre-tax share-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
$21 million, including che incremental pre-tax cost of $10 million, relating ro stock options
and stock appreciation rights. This incremental impact was a reduction to net income of $6
million, or earnings per share of $0.03, net of tax. Substantially all of this compensation
expense is recorded as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses. See
Note ] for further detail on share-based compensation.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the company measured compensation cost for share-based
compensation awards issued to employees and directors using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB)

No. 25. The company applied APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued ro
Employees, as amended, in accounting for its plans. In January 2003, the company adopred
the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value-based method of accounting for share-based employee
compensation and amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.
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If compensation cost for the company's share-based compensation awards had been
determined based on the fair value method in periods prior to 2006, the company’s net
income (loss) and net income {loss} per share would have been reduced to the pro-forma

amounts as follows:

Years ended December 31

In millions, except per share data 2005 2004
Net income (loss) - as reported $ 28 % (349)
Add: Share-hased compensation expense included in

reported net income (loss}, net of related tax effect 3 1

Deduct: Total share-hased compensation expense
determined under fair value-based method for all awards,
net of related tax effect 11 8

Pro-forma net income {loss) $ 20 $ (356)

Met income (loss) per share — basic

As reported $0.14 $(1.73)

Pro-forma 0.11 (1.77)
Net income (loss} per share — diluted

As reported $0.14 $(1.72)

Pro-forma 0.11 {1.76)

The pro-forma amounts and fair value of each award grant were estimated on the date
of granr using a binomial eption pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2005 and 2004: risk-free interest rates of 3.98% and 3.30%,
respectively; expected dividend yiclds of 3.05% and 3.21%, respectively; and expected lives
of six years and expecred volatility of 32% for each year presented.
Income (loss) per share: Basic net income {loss) per share for all the periods presented
has been calculated using the weighted average shares outstanding. In computing dituced
net income {loss) per share, incremental shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock
options and other stock-based compensation awards have been added to the weighted average
shares outscanding, if dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
12.4 million, 8.0 million and 7.3 million equity awards, respectively, were excluded from
the calculation of weighted average shares, as the exercise price per share was greacer than
the average market value, resulting in an antidilutive effect on diluted earnings per share,
Related party transactions: The company has certain related parry transactions in the
ordinary course of business that are insignificant and the terms of which are no more or less

favorable to the company than che terms of any other arms-length transaction,
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-revised
2004 (SFAS No. 123R), Share-Based Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting
Jar Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Isued to Fmplayees. Sce Note | for further detail on share-based
compensation.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment (SAB No. 107). SAB No. 107 addresses
the interaction berween SFAS No. 123R and cerrain SEC rules and regulations and provides
the SEC staff’s views regarding che valuation of share-based payment arrangements for
public companies. The company followed the interpretive guidance set forth in SAB
No. 107 during its adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 134, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,
which replaces APB Opinions No. 20 Accounting Changes and SFAS No. 3, Reporting
Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements — An Amendment of APB Opinion
No. 28. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting
changes and error corrections, It establishes rerrospective application, unless impracticable,
as the required method for reporting a change in accounting principle and the reporting
of a correction of an error and for reporting a change when retrospective application is
impracticable. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years ending afrer December 15, 2006, and is required to be adopted by
the company in che first quarter of 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 did not have an
impact on the company’s consolidated inancial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in
the financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN
48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribure for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expecred ro be raken in a tax return.
It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and eransition. This Interpretation is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The cumularive effects, ifany, of applying FIN 48
will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of
adoption. The company is currently evaluating the effect thae the adoprion of FIN 48 will
have on its cansolidared results of operations and financial condition and is not yet in a
position to determine such effeets.

1n September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS
No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures abour fair value measurements. This Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements, but applies to existing accounting pronouncements that require or
permin fair value measurement as the relevant measurement aceribute, This Statement is
effective for Anancial statements issued for hscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The company has not yet determined the
impact of adopting this standard.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan in its balance sheet and to
recognize the changes in the plan’s funded status in comprehensive income in the year in
which the change occurs. These provisions of the Statement are effective as of the end of
the first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2000, Pursuant to the Scatement’s adoption,
the ner after-tax charge to accumulated other comprehensive loss in the fourth quarter of
2006 was $57 million, which principally represents the impact of recognizing previously
unrecognized prior service costs and acruarial losses. This Statement will not affect the
company’s ERISA funding obligations and the company does not currently foresce a need
for company contributions to the qualified plans. Funding obligations for non-qualified and
non-U.S. plans are discussed in Note K.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering
the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements (SAB No. 108). SAB No. 108 requires that public companies urilize a
“dual-approach” to assessing the quantitative effects of inancial missratements. This dual
approach includes both an income statement focused assessmenr and a balance sheet focused
assessment. The guidance in SAB No. 108 must be applied to annual Anancial statemencs
for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have
a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial position or resulis of operations.

There were no other new accounting standards issued in 2006 that had or are expected
te have a material impact on the company’s financial position or results of operations.
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A. CURRENT ASSETS

Cash equivalents of $39 million and $162 million at December 31, 2006 and 20035,
respectively, are valued at cost, which approximates marker value. Trade receivables have
been reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts of $15 million and $18 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Receivables also include $64 million and
$114 million from sources other than trade ar December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Inventories at December 31, 2006 and 2005, are comprised of:

December 31

In millions 2006 2005

Raw materials %182 $170
Preduction materials, stores and supplies 107 101
Finished and in-process goods 426 443

$715 $714

Approximately 60% and 66% of inventories at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively,
are valued using the LIFO method. If inventories had been valued art current cost, they
would have been $838 million, $813 million and $798 millien at December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The effect of a LIFO layer decrement in 2006 was an increase of
$0.02 to earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006. The effects of LIFO layer
decrements in 2005 and 2004 were not significant o che company’s results of operations.
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B. PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND FORESTLANDS
Depreciation and depletion expense was $433 million, $404 million and $409 million for
the years ended December 31, 20006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Land and land improvements 3 276 $ 281
Buildings G947 803
Machinery and other 6,083 5,799
7,306 6,983

Less; accumulated depreciation {3,501) (3,167}
3,805 3,816

Forestlands 488 490
Construction in progress 230 181
% 4,523 $ 4,487

C. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Unless otherwise deemed necessary by changes in circumstances, the company performs its
annual impairment review during the fourth quarter of each year.

On July 5, 2006, the company completed its acquisition of Saint-Gobain Calmar from
Compagnic de Saint-Gobain, As a result of the purchase price allocation, goodwill in the
amount of $302 million was recorded. See Note I” for further discussion.

In the second quarter of 2003, the company sold its printing and writing papers business
to an affiliate of Cerberus Management LLC. The net proceeds from the sale were fess than
the carrying value of the net assets sold, resulting in an impairment of all goodwill related
to those operations ($238 millton, or $1.18 per share), which was recorded in 2004. The
goodwill impairment charge for 2004 is included in discontinued operations. See Note P for
additional derails associated with the sale of the printing and writing papers business.

No additional goedwill impairment charge was necessary as a result of the 2006, 2005
or 2004 annual impairment reviews.

As of December 31, 2006, goodwill allocated to each of the company's business segments
was $68 million to Packaging Resources, $540 million to Consumer Solutions, $234 million
to Consumer and Office Products, and $9 million te Specialty Chemicals.
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 are
as follows:

In mitlions 2006 2005
Beginning balance $559 557
Acquired goodwill* 302 -
Adjustmenls? (10) 2
Ending balance $851 $559

! Represents goodwill associated with the acquisition of Calmar.
2 Represents adjustments to 1ax contingencies, foreign currency translation and certain purchase price allocations.

The following table summarizes intangible assets subject to amortization included in

other assers:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Gross Gross
carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated
In millions amount amortization amount amortization

Intangible assets, subject to amortization:

Trademarks and trade names $208 3 53 $207 $ 41
Customer contracts and lists 278 46 105 35
Patents 59 28 40 21
Other — primarily licensing rights 30 15 36 10
$575 $142 $388 %107

In connection with the company’s acquisition of Saint-Gobain Calmar in July 2006,
the company acquired indefinite-lived intangible assers of $91 million, in addition o
amortizable intangible assets of $186 million. See Note I* for further discussion.

The company recorded amortization expense of $37 million, $33 million and $30
million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, relating to
intangible asscts subject to amortization.

Based on the current carrying value of intangible assets subject to amortization,
the estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is as follows: 2007 —
$41 million, 2008 - $37 millien, 2009 ~ $36 million, 2010 - $35 million, and 2011 -
$30 million.

MeadWestvaco 2006 Annual Report




D. OTHER ASSETS

December 31

In miltions 2006 2005
Identifiable intangible assets $524 $281
Cash surrender value of life insurance. net of borrowings 197 229
Capitalized software, net 62 60
Eguipment leased to customers, net 95 86
Available-for-sale securities - 7¢
Other g8 112

$876 $838

As parc of che consideration from the sale of the printing and writing papers business in
2005, the company received $100 million in aggregate principal amount of sentor unsecured
payable-in-kind (PIK) promissory notes (fair value of $75 million at date of issuance) of 1
subsidiary (NewPage Corporation} of the purchaser. These securities were floating rate notes
that bore interest at a rate of six-month LIBOR {London Interbank Offered Rate). The PIK
notes were classified as available-for-sale securities and to be repaid to the company by the
purchaser before there were any distributions made to the equity holders of the purchaser.
During 2006, the company reclassified to net income an after-tax gain of $13 million

($21 million pre-tax) associated with the sale of the PIK notes. The unrealized holding gain
related to the PIK notes arising during 2006 was $22 million, net of taxes. During 2005, the
company recorded a net unrealized holding loss of $9 million on these PIK notes. That net
unrealized loss was included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2605.
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E. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

December 31

In miilions 2006 2005

Accounts payable:
Trade 1465 $374
Other 27 a2
1552 3416

Accrued expenses:
Taxes, other than income b 28 $ 35
Interest 54 60
Payroll and employee benefit costs 264 201
Accrued rebates and allowances P18 126
Environmental and litigation — current portion 30 35
Income taxes payzable 12 13
Freight 11 15
Restructuring 50 11
Other 125 117
%702 $613

F. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt consisted of the following:

2006

In millicns

Commercial paper borrowings 1148

Other short-term borrowings 11

Current maturities of fong-term debt 52
w211

December 31

2005

The maximum amounss of combined commercial paper borrowings outstanding during che
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $355 miltion and $115 million, respectively.
The average amount of commercial paper borrowings outstanding during the vears ended

December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $136 million and $1 million, respectively, with an average

interest rate of 5.5% and 3.1%, respectively. Approximately $190 million of the $340 million

initial commercial paper borrowings related o the acquisidion of Saint-Gobain Calmar were

paid down in 2006 from cash Aow from operations. There were $11 mitlion of shert-term
borrowings ar December 31, 2006 and 2005 related to certain foreign operations.
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In the period from January 1, 2007 to February 1, 2007, the holders of the company’s 6.84%
debentures, due 2037, were enritled 1o elect early repayment, in whaole or in part, at 100% of
the principal amount outstanding. Holders elected early repayment of $45 million, which
will be paid by the company on March 1, 2007, and the repayment amount is included in
current maturities of long-term debr as of December 31, 20006.

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31

In millions 2006 2005

Notes, rates from 6.85% to 7.10%,

due 2009-2012 £ 676 $ 679
Debentures, rates from 6.80% to 9.75%,

due 2017-2047 1,227 1,227
Sinking fund debentures, rates from 7.50% to 7.65%,

due 2008-2027 299 294
Medium-term notes s} 6
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds:

Rate 6.375%, due 2026 & 6
Industrial Ravenue Bonds:

Rate 7.67%, due 2027 80 80
Other bank term loans 58 58
Capital lease obligations 62 6l
Cther long-term debt 10 3

2.424 2,419
Less: amounts due within one year {52) {2}
Long-term debt 32,372 $2,417

As of December 31, 2006, ourstanding debt maturing in the next five years is (in millions):
2007 — $211, 2008 — $17, 2009 — $66, 2010 - $15, and 2011 — $15.

Capital lease obligations consist primarily of Industrial Development Revenue Bonds
in rhe amount of $51 million that marure in May 2035 with an average effective interest
rate of 6.4%.

In December 2005, MeadWestvaco amended its bank credit agreement, T'he agreement
was amended to reduce the credit facilicy from $1 billion to $750 million and to extend
the marurity date to December 1, 2010. Borrowings under the agreement can be unsecured
domestic or eurodollar notes and at rates approximating prime or the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) at the company’s option. The $750 million credit agreement
contains a financial covenane limiting the percentage of roral debrt 1o total capiralization
(including deferred taxes) to 53%, as well as certain other covenants with which the
company was in compliance at December 31, 2006. The company’s commercial paper
program is supported by its $750¢ million revolving credit facility which was undrawn at
December 31, 2006. The company had $148 million of commercial paper borrowings
ourstanding at December 31, 2006.
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The company utilized a portion of the cash proceeds from the sale of its printing and
writing papers business in 20035 o retire approximarely $1 billion of debr. The charges
incurred to retire the debt in 2005 were approximately $90 million, compared to
insignificant debt retirement fees in 2006 and 2004,

The percentage of debt to total capital was 42.29% and 41.1% at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

At December 31, 2006, the book value of financial instruments included in long-rerm
debt was $2.4 billion, and the fair value was estimated 1o be $2.6 billion. At December 31,
2005, the book value of Anancial instruments included in long-term debr was $2.4 billion,
and che fair value was estimated to be $2.7 billion. The difference between book value and
market value is derived from the difference between the period-end market interest rate and
the stated rate for the company’s fixed-race, long-term debr. The company has estimated the
fair value of financial instruments based upan quoted marker prices for the same or similar
issues or on the current interest rates available 1o the company for debe of similar terms and

maruritics.

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company uses various derivative fnancial instruments as part of an overall scrategy to
manage exposure to market risks associated wich interest rate, foreign currency exchange
rate and commodicy price Huctuations. The company does not hold or issue derivative
financial inscruments for trading purposes. The risk of loss to the company in the event of
nonperformance by any counterparty under derivative financial instrument agreements s
not considered significant by management. Although the derivative financial instruments
expose the company to marker risk, fluctuations in the value of the derivacives are mitigared
by expected offsetting luctuations in the matched instrumenss. All derivarive instruments
are required to be recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as assets or liabilicies,
measured at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a fair-value hedge, the changes in
the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged item actriburable to the hedged risk are
recognized in carnings. If the derivative is designared as a cash-flow hedge, the effective
portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative is recorded in other comprehensive
loss and is recognized in the statements of operations when the hedged item affecrs
earnings. Inetfective pordons of changes in the fair value of cash-Aow hedges and financial

instruments not designated as hedges are recognized in earnings.
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NATURAL GAS ln order to better predict and control the future cost of natural gas consumed
ac the company’s mills and plants, the company engages in financial hedging of future gas
purchase prices. Gas usage is relatively predictable month-by-month. The company “locks
in” the cost of a pertion of its future natural gas usage by entering into swap agreements.
The hedging instrument is fucures price contracts of NYMEX gas. The company does not
hedge basis (the effect of varying delivery points or location) or transportation (the cost to
transport the gas from the delivery point to a company location) under these transactions.

Unrealized gains and losses on contracts maturing in furure months are recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive loss and are charged or credired ro earnings for the
ineffeccive pordion of the hedge. Once a contract marures, the company has a realized gain
or loss on the contract up to the quantities of natural gas in the forward swap agreements
for that particular period, which are charged or credited to earnings when the related hedge
item affects earnings.

Details on the natural gas hedges are incladed below:

December 31

in millions 2006 2005

Estimated pre-tax losses to be recognized
in operations within:

2007 $4 _
2008 ! -
Maximum remaining tarm (in years} of existing hedges 2 -

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004

Net unrealized losses in accumulated other

comprehensive loss, net of tax %3 - -
Net losses reclassified to operations, net of tax 1 - -
Amount of gain or loss recognized in operations

due to the probability that forecasted transactions

will not occur - - -
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INTEREST RATE RISK The company utilizes interest-rate swap agreements to manage a
portion of its interest-rate risk on its debe instruments. As pare of an overali strategy o
maintain an appropriate level of exposure to interese-rate flucruations, the company has
developed a targeted mix of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. To efficiently manage this
mix, the company may urilize interest-rate swap agreements. The company has interest-
rate swaps designated as fair-value hedges of certain fixed-rate borrowings, There were no
interest-rate swaps designated as cash-flow hedges at December 31, 2006 and 2005, The
maturity dates on these swaps match the marurity dates of the underlying debt. During the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005-and 2004, the interest-rate swaps were an effective
hedge and. cherefore, required no charge to carnings due to ineffectiveness in accordance
with SFAS No. 133. Details on the interest-rate swaps are included below:

December 31

In mitiions 2005 2005
Notional amount $525 $475
Fair value {3) 2
Carrying amount {1} 1
Net unrealized (loss) gain {2} 1

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK The company uses foreign currency forward contracts to
manage some of the foreign currency exchange risks associared wich certain short-term
forcign intercompany loans, some forcign currency sales and purchases of its international
operations, and some foreign sales of its U.S. operations, Using such forward contracts,
the company receives or pays the difference between the concracted forward rate and the
exchange rate ac che serrlement date. These contracts are used to hedge the variability

of exchange rates on the company’s cash flows. The forward contracts related to certain
intercompany loans are shore term in duration and are not designated as hedging
instruments under SFAS No. 133, Ocher forward contracts, which are for terms of up to
one year, are designated as cash-flow hedges under SFAS No. 133. Information related to
the company’s foreign currency forward contracts is as follows:

Intercompany loans, without hedge accounting:

December 31
In miltions 2006 2005
Motional amount %55 398
Fair value 04 1
Carrying amount (0 4) )
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Foreign currency sales and purchases, with hedge accounting;

December 31

In miflions 2006 2005
Netional amount $62 $106
Estimated amount to be recognized in operations

within the next year (G.3) 2
Maximum remaining term (in years) of existing hedges 1 1

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
Net unrealized losses in accumulated other

comprehensive [oss $ (0.3 $2 -
Net (losses) gains reclassified to operations (1) 4 -

Amount of gain or loss recognized in operations
due to the probability that forecasted transactions
will not occur

H. LEASING ACTIVITIES AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The company leases a variety of assets for use in its operations. Leases for administrative

offices, converting plants and storage facilities generally contain options, which allow the
company to extend lease terms for periods up to 25 years or to purchase the properties.

Certain leases provide for escalation of the lease payments as maintenance costs and raxes

increase. Minimum rental payments pursuant to agreements in force as of December 31,

20006, under operating leases that have noncancellable lease terms in excess of 12 months

and under capital leases arc as follows:

n millions Cperating leases Capital leases
2007 $ 62 $ 4
2008 41 4
2009 33 5
2010 29 4
2011 21 4
Later years 48 143
Minimum lease payments $222 164
Less: amounts representing interest (102)
Capital lease obligations $ 62
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Rental expense under operating leases was $83 million, $75 million and $86 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On January 11, 2007, the company entered into a lease agreement wich a third party
pursuant to which the company will lease a facility for its corporate headquarters in Richmond,
Virginia with an initial term of 13.5 years. ltis expected that the lease commencement date
will be in the third quarter of 2009, after about a two-year construction period. The annual
minimum rental payments associated with this agreement, which will depend largely in part
on the final cost of the facilicy and the amount of square footage leased, are estimared ro be
between $9 million and $10 million, beginning in the second half of 2009.

I. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The value included in common stock ac December 31, 2006 and 2005, reflects the
outstanding shares of common stock at the $0.01 par value per share.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, approximately $700 million of the
approximately $2.2 billion in proceeds from the sale of the company’s printing and
writing papers business, was used to repurchase a total of almost 24 million, or 12%, of
the company’s ourstanding common shares. The repurchased shares, upon retirement,
were recorded as a reduction of common stock and additional paid-in capital pursuant to
the regulations of the State of Delaware, the state of incorporation, and the approval by
the company’s Board of Directors.

The cumulative components at year end of accumulated other comprehensive loss for

2006 and 2005 are as follows:

December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Foreign currency translation $70 $(39)
Minimum pension liability (see Note K) - {10
Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158 (see Note K} (74) -
Unrealized holding lass on debt security {(see Note D) - {9)
Unrealized gainf{loss) on derivative instruments (see Note G) (3 2

$ ) $(56)
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At December 31, 20006, there were approximately 181 million preferred stock purchase
rights outstanding, each representing the right to purchase 1/100¢h of a share of Series

A Junior Participating Preferred Stock far an exercise price of $150. Pursuant to a Rights
Agreement approved by the company’s Board of Directors in 2002, in the event a person or
group were 1o acquire a 13% or grearer position in the company, cach right would become
exercisable for 1/100th of a share of preferred stock which would enritle its holder (other
than the acquirer) to buy thar number of shares of commen stock of MeadWestvaco which,
ar the time of the 15% acquisition, at a market value of two times the exercise price of the
rights. If, afver the rights have been triggered, an acquiring company were to merge or
otherwise combine with the company or MeadWestvaco were to sell 30% or more of its
assets or earning powet, each right would entitle its holder {ather than the acquirer) to buy
that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which, at the time of
such rransaction. would have a marker value of two times the exercise price of the rights.
The rights have no effect on earnings per share undl they become exercisable. The rightes
expire in December 2012, At December 31, 2006, there were authorized and available for
issuc 30 million shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of which six million
shares were designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and reserved for
issuance upon exercise of the righes.

Dividends declared were $(.92 per share in each of the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004.

The company had an original abligation to the former owner of a subsidiary to buy
back approximarely 1.6 million shares (share put) of MeadWestvaco stock issued as part
of the purchase price at a fixed rate; the value of this share repurchase approximared $58
million. During 2005, the company purchased and retired 0.3 million of these shares
for approximately $11 million and in 2006, the company repurchased and retired the
remaining 1.3 million shares for approximately $47 million.

In October of 2005, the company’s Board of Directors authorized the future repurchase
of up to 5 million shares, primarily o avoid dilution of earnings per share relating to the
exercise of employee stock options. The 1.6 million shares repurchased under the pur
option are not a reduction of the share repurchases authorized by the Board of Directors.
The number of shares available for repurchase under this program at December 31, 2006,
was 4,707,422.
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J. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The company adopted SFAS No.123R. Share-Based Payment, as of January 1, 2006,

using the modified prospective method and therefore, prior periods were not restated.
This Statement requires the recognition of compensation expense when an entity obrains
employee services in share-based payment transactions. Under chis new standard, pre-

tax share-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $21 million,
including incremental pre-tax cost of $10 million relating te stock oprions and stock
appreciation rights. This incremental impact was a reduction te net income of $6 million,
or earnings per share of $0.03, net of tax. Substantially all of this compensation expense is
recorded 25 2 component of selling, general and administrative expenses. The cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle associated with the adoprion of SFAS No. 123R
was immaterial to the consolidated financial statements. For all awards granted by the
company, compensation expense is recognized on a straighe-line basis over the vesting
period. generally three years. The company has used the “long-haul” method to determine
the pool of tax benefits or deficiencies resulting from rax deductions related 1o awards of
equity instruments that exceed or are less than the cumulacive compensarion cost for those
instruments recognized for financial reporting.

Officers and key employees have been granted share-based awards under various
stock-based compensation plans, all of which have been approved by the sharcholders. At
December 31, 2006, MeadWestvaco had five such plans under which share-based awards
are available for grant. There were an aggregate of 28 million shares initially reserved under
the 1991 and 1996 Stock Option Plans, the 1995 Salaried Employee Stock Incentive Plan,
the 1999 Salaried Employee Stock Incentive Plan and the 2005 Performance Incentive
Plan for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricred stock
and restricted stock units to key employees. For all of the employee plans, there were
11 million shares available for grant as of Diecember 31, 2006. The vesting of such awards
may be conditioned upon either a specified period of time or the arrainment of specific
performance goals as determined by the plan. Grants of stock options and other share-based
compensation awards are appraved by the Compensation and Organization Development
Committee of the Board of Directors. The exercise price of all stock options equals the
market price of the company’s stock on the date of grant. Stock options and SARs are
exercisable after 2 period of three years and expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grang. Under cerrain employce plans, stock options may be granted with or withour stock
appreciation rights or limited stock appreciation righes, which are exercisable upon the
occurrence of cerrain events related to changes in corporate contral. Granting of seock
appreciation rights is generally limited to employees of the company who are located in
countries where the issuance of stock options is not advantageous.

MeadWestvaco 2006 Annual Report




Oprions to purchase 1.3 million shares issued under the 1996 Steck Option PMan are
accompanied by a feature that allows option holders who exercise their stock options and
hold the common shares they received at exercise to receive an additional stock option grant
with an exercise price at the then-current market price.

The MeadWestvaco Corporation Compensarion Plan for Non-Employee Directors
provides for the grant of stock awards up to approximately 500,000 shares to outside
directors in the form of stack options or stock units. Non-employee members of the Board
of Directors are currently granted restricted stock units, which vest immediartely and are
distribured in the form of stock shares on the date that a director ceases to be a member
of the Board of Directors. A restricted stock unic is the right to receive a share of company
stock. [n 2006, 2005 and 2004, the total annual grants consisted of 25,558, 24,710 and
28,071 restricted stock unirs, respectively, for non-employee directors. There were 91,519
of these shares of restricted stock unics issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2006.
There were 335,367 shares remaining for grant under this plan at December 31, 2006.

STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS The company has estimated the fair
value of its stock option and SAR awards granted after January 1, 2006, using a lattice-
based option valuation model. Lattice-based option valuation models utilize ranges of
assumptions over the expected term of the options. Expected volarilities are based on the
historical and implied volatility of the company’s stock. The company uses historical data to
estimare oprion and SAR exercises and employee terminations wichin the valuation model.
The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the option valuation
model and represents the period of time that options and SARs granted are expected to be
outstanding. The risk-free rate for the period within the contractual life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. A summary of the
assumptions is as follows:

LATTICE-BASED OPTION VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

. 2006
Weighted average fair valde of stock ophons granted during the pericd $7.64
Weighted average fa|r value of SARs granted during the perlod . $7.06
Expected dividend.yield for stock opllons - 3.27%
Expecled dividend yield for SARs o 3.38%
Expected volatility ] 285
Average risk-free interest rate for stock ophons 4.71%
Average risk-tree inlerest rale for SARs 4.78%%
Average expected term for options and SARs (in years} 8
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The following rable summarizes stock option and SAR activity in the plans.

Weighted average
Shares in thousands Options exercise price

Qutstanding at January 1, 2004 18,108 $28.60
Granted 1,095 28.65
Exercised (2,811) 26.72
Cancelled (475) 28.57

Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 15917 28.94
Granted 1,518 30.18
Exercised (1,462} 26.52
Cancelled (960} 29.36

Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 15,013 29.27
Granted 1,050 28.13
Exercised {2,096) 26.90
Cancelled (972) 30.21

Cutstanding at December 31, 2006 12,995 29.49

Exercisable at December 31, 2006 10,989 29.58
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 12,531 29.27
Exercisable at December 31, 2004 13,413 29.35
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Weighted Aggregate

Weighted average average remaining intrinsic value

SARs exercise price contractual term {in millicns)
127 $26.60

(5} 26.74 $13.6
(9) 24.00
113 26.80
143 30.21

9 25.48 5.6
(20) 29.69
227 28.75
309 27.46

(2) 25.51 4.9
(44) 29.28

490 29.55 4.2 years 17.3

131 27.88 3.2 years 14.4

84 27.57 3.3 years 6.6

72 28.11 3.6 years
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At December 31, 20006, there was approximately $18 million of unrecognized pre-tax
_compensation cost related to nonvested stock options and SARs, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years. Pre-tax compensation expense for
stock options and SARs was $10 million for 2006 and rhe tax benefits associated with these
expenses were $4 million.

The company measures compensation expense related to che stock appreciation rights
ar the end of cach period. Changes in the fair value are reflecred as an adjustment of
accrued compensation liability and compensation expense in the periods in which the
changes occur.

Toral cash received from the excrcise of share-based instruments in 2006 was
approximately $53 millien.

RESTRICTED STOCK AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS A rescricted stock unir is the right to
receive a share of company stack. Restricted stock and restricted stock units granted

vest over three years. The awards granted in 2006 and 2003 consisted of both service
and performance vesting restricted stock units. The total compensation expense is being
recorded over che shares’ three-year vesting period. Under the plans, the owners of the
stock are entitled to voting rights and to receive dividends, but will forfeir the stock if
the individual holder separates from the company during the three-year vesting period
ot if predetermined goals are not accomplished relative to return on invested capital,
revenue from new products, toral procurement savings and reduction in selling, general
and administrative expenses. The fair value of cach share of restricred stock and restricted
stock unic is cthe market price of the company's stock on the dace of grant, and is charged
to operations over the vesting period. Performance-based awards granted in 20006 and
2005 were 510,170 and 281,420, respectively. Nonc of these grancs were vested as of
December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity in the
plans (excluding non-employee director plans).

Average
grant date
fair market

Shares in thousands Shares value
Qutstanding at January 1, 2004 - 8 -
Granted 246 28.59
Forfeited (3} 28.59
Released - -
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 243 28.59
Granted 281 30.21
Forfeited (4) 25.33
Released - -
Quistanding at December 31, 2005 520 29.06
Granted 823 28.12
Forfeited {77) 27.70
Released (25) 28.59
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 1.24] 28.82

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $19 million of unrecognized pre-tax
compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock unirs,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years. Pre-tax
compensation expense for restricted stock and restricted stock units was $11 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006, and $5 million for the year ended December 31,
2005, and the rax benefit associated with chis expense was $4 million and $2 million,
respectively. Dividends, which are payable in stock, accrue on the restricred stock unit
grants and are subject to the same specified terms as the original granes,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT, POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLANS MeadWestvaco provides retirement benefics for substantially all

U.S. and cerrain non-U.S. employecs under several noncontributory trusteed plans and
also provides benefits to employees whose retirement benefits exceed maximum amounts
permiteed by current tax law under unfunded benefic plans. Benefics are based on a final
average pay formula for the salaried plans and a unic benefic formuta for the bargained
hourly plans. Prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service period for active employces. Contributions are made to the funded plans
in accordance with ERISA requirements.

In August 2006, the President signed into law the Pension Protection Act of 2006
(PPA). The PPA establishes new minimum funding rules for defined benefit pension plans
beginning in 2008. The company does not anticipate any required funding to the U.S.
qualified retirement plans as a result of this legislation in the foresecable future due to the
overfunded starus of the plans.

In Seprember 2006, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefir Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statement Nos.

&7, 88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded
or underfunded status of a defined benefit and postretirement plan in its balance sheer

and to recognize the changes in the plan’s funded scacus in comprehensive income in the
year in which the change occurs. These provisions of the Statement are effective as of che
end of the first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. SFAS No. 158 also requires an
employer to measure the funded seatus of a plan as of the dace of its fiscal year end, which
is consistent with 1the Company’s measurement date. T'he impact of adopting SFAS No. 158
as of December 31, 2006 was a ner increase to accumulated other comprehensive loss in the
amount of $57 million, net of tax.

In October 2006, the Board of Directors approved the creation of a cash balance
formula within the Company’s existing retirement plans for salaried and non-bargained
hourly employees. The formula will provide cash balance credits ac the rate of 4% — 8%
of cligible carnings, depending upon age and years of service poings, with interest credited
annually at the 30-year Treasury rate. Effective July 1, 2006, all U.S. Calmar employees
began accruing cash balance credits under this new formula. Effective January 1, 2007,
all newly hired U.S. employees will accrue benefits under this new formula. Effective
January 1, 2008, all U.S. employces age 40 and over at that time will be provided the
opporwunity to make a one-time choice between the existing final average pay and cash
balance formulas and all U.S. employees less than age 40 ar thar time will begin aceruing
cash balance credits under this formula. The adoption of this change reduced retirement
plan liabilities by $25 million as of December 31, 2006 and increased net periodic pension
income for 2006 by $t million.

Net periodic pensien cost (incomc) rclating to employee recirement bencfits was ${49)
million, $48 million and $(36) million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting
for Setdements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,
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sertlements, curtailments and termination benefits associated with merger-related and
restructuring activities were recorded. Net periodic pension cost (income) reflects cumulative
favorable investment returns on plan assets. Prior service cost and actuarial gains and losses
subject to amortization are amortized on a straight-tine basis over the average remaining
service, which is about 11 years.

The components of net pension cost (income) for each of the periods presented are
as follows:

Years ended December 31

in millions 2006 2005 2004
Service cost-benefits earned during the period $ 59 $ 53 $ 67
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 142 141 148
Expected return on plan assets (262) (273} (298}
Amortization of prior service cost 7 7 11
Amortization of net loss (gain) 4 2 (1)

Pension income before settiements, curtailments

and termination benefits {50) (70) (73)
Settlements - 115 -
Curtailments - - 37
Termination benefits 1 3 -
Net periodic pension cost {income) $ (49) $ 48 % (36)

The components of aother changes in plan assets and benehit obligations recognized in other

comprehensive loss:

2006

Net actuarial l0ss $ 111

Prior service cost 41

Tota! recognized in other comprehensive loss $ 182
Total recognized in net pericdic pension cost {income)

and other comprehensive 1058 $ 103

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit retirement
plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic
benefit cost in 2007 is $5 million and $6 million, respectively.
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In January 2003, the company reached an agreement o sell its printing and writing papers
business and related assers. As a result, the company recorded a charge of $37 million
relating to special termination benefits and a curtailment loss in the retirement plans ac
December 31. 2004, In 2005, a sectlement loss in the retirement plans of $110 million was
also recorded. Tabular amounts were not adjusted for discontinued operations resulting
from the sale. Net pension income from continuing eperations, before settlements,
curtailments and termination benefits, was $67 million and $86 million in 2005 and
2004, respectively.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS MeadWestvaco provides life insurance for substantially all
recirces and medical benefits to certain retirees in the form of cost subsidics until Medicare
eligibility is reached and to certain ocher retirees. medical benefits up to a maximum
tifetime amount. The company funds certain medical benefits on a current basis with
retirees paying a portion of the costs. Certain retired employees of businesses acquired
by the company are covered under other medical plans thac differ from current plans
in coverage, deductibles and retiree contributions. Prior service cost and actuarial gains
and losses subject to amortization are amortized over the average remaining service,
which is about 6 years, In 2004, the company modified cerain postretirement healthcare
benefits to be provided to future retirees. This change reduced the poscretirement benefit
obligation by about $68 million, and is being amortized over the remaining life of the
cligible employces, which is approximately 24 years.

The components of net postretirement benefits cost (income) for each of the periods
presented are as follows:

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
Service cost-benefits earned during the period % 3 $ 5 $7
Interest cost 8 g 12
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net amortization (N - 5

Postretirement expense before curtailments

and terminalion benefits 10 14 24
Curtailments - (29) -
Termination benefits - - (1
Net periodic postretirement benefits cost $ 10 $(15) $23
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The components of other changes in plan assets and benehit obligations recognized in other
comprehensive loss:

Net actuarial gain
Frior service benefit

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss

Tetal recognized in net periodic postretirement
benefit cost (income) and other comprehensive loss

The estimated net actuarial gain and prior service benefit for the postretirement plans
that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic
postretirement benefit cost in 2007 is $(1) million, allocated equally between components.
In 2005, a curtailment gain of $29 mitlion, related to the sale of the printing and
writing papers business, was recorded. Tabular amounts were not adjusted for discontinued
operations resulting from the sale. Net periodic postretirement benefit cost from continuing

operations, before curtailments and termination benefits, was $13 million and $21 millien

in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The following table also sets forth the funded status of the plans and amounts recognized
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005, based on a measurement
dare of December 31 for each period.
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OBLIGATIONS, ASSETS AND FUNDED STATUS

Qualified U.S. Retirement Plans

In millions 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of period $2.484 $2.519
Service cost 54 49
Interest cost 133 133
Actuariat loss (gain) {57} 201
Plan amendments 119) 7
Acquisitions - -

Foreign currency exchange rate changes - -
Employee contributions - -

Terminaticn benefit costs 14 14
Settiements - (236}
Benefits paid (including termination benefits) (171) (203}

Curtailments - -

Benefit obligation at end of year $2.438 $2.484

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pericd $3.120 $3.365
Actual return on plan assets 409 261
Company contributions -
Foreign currency exchange rate changes - -
Employee contributions - -

Settlements - (303}
Benefits paid {including termination benefits} (171) (203}
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $3.358 $3,120
Over (under) funded status at end of year % 920 $ 636

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
consist of:
Noncurrent assets - Prepaid pension asset $ 920 $ 994
Intangible assets - -
Current liabilities - -
Noncurrent liabilities - -

Total net pension asset (liability) & 920 $ 994

Amounts recognized in accumulated cther
comprehensive income (pre-tax} consist of:
Net actuarial loss {gain} 75 $ -
Pricr service cost (benefit) 45 -

Total recognized in accumulated othar
comprehensive loss $ 120 % -
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Years ended December 31

Nonqualified U.S. and
Non-U.S. Retirement Plans

Postretirement Benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005
%159 $ 157 $ 1563 $ 185
5 4 3 5
9 8 8 9
14 5 (14} (15)
1 - - (2
10 - -
10 (&) - -
- - 16 17
1 - - -
(8) {9 (35) (35}
_ - - {11)
$ 201 $ 159 $ 131 $ 153
$ 50 $ 44 $ - $ -
5 7 - -
g 10 19 18
4 {2) - -
- - 16 17
8) (9) (35) (35)
$ 60 $ 50 $ - $ -
$(141) $(109) ${131) $(153)
$ - $ - - $ -
- 1 _ -
(5} - {18) -
(136) (94) (113) (187)
$(141) $ (93) ${131) $(187)
$ 51 $ 15 $ (15) $ -
(4) - (33 -
$ 47 $ 15 $ (48) $ -
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The unrecognized net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the qualified and nonqualified
U.S. and non-U.S, retirement plans were $323 million and $66 million, respectively, ac
December 31, 2005. The unrecognized prior service benefit for the postrerirement plans
was 534 million at December 31, 2005.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit plans was $2,513 million and
$2,485 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Information for pension plans with an accumulared benefic obligation in excess of plan
assets as of December 31:

In milligns 2006 2005
Projected henefit obligation £184 %144
Accumulated benefit chligation 165 128
Fair value of plan assets 45 37

IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF SFAS NO. 158 The adoption of SFAS No. 158 as of December 31,
2006 required the recognition of previously unrecognized prior service cost and net

actuarial losses,

SFAS 158

adoption
In millions Pre-SFAS 158 adjustments Post SFAS 158
Prepaid pension asset £1.040 S(120) $ 820

Intangible pension asset 1 (N
Accrued pension liability (123) (18} (141}
Accrued pestretirement liahility (179) a8 (131)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 17 a7 74
Deferred tax asset 11 34 45
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ASSUMPTIONS The weighted average assumptions used to determine the company’s beneht
abligations at December 31:

2006 2005
Retirement benefits:
Discount rate 5.71% 5.48%
Rate of compensation increase 387% 3.99%
Postretirement benefits:
Discount rate 5.74% 5.50%
Healthcare cost increase 857% 10.00%
Prescription drug cost increase 12.92% 14.00%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost and net
8 g p
postretirement benefits cost for the years presenced:

Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
Retirement benefits:
Discount rate 5.48% 5.68% 5.99%
Rate of compensation increase 3.99% 3.98% 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.A7% B.AB% B.46%
Posirelirerment benefits:
Discount rate 5.50% 5.60% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets - - 6.35%
Healthcare cost increase 10.00% 12.00% 13.00%
Prescription drug cost increase 14.00% - -

MeadWestvaco's approach to developing capital marker assumprions combines an analysis
of historical performance, the drivers of investment performance by asser class and current
econemic fundamentals. For returns, the company utilizes a building black approach
starting with an inflation expectation and adds an expected real return to arrive av a long-
term nominal expected return for each asset class. Long-term expected real recurns are
derived in the context of future expectations for the U.S, Treasury real vield curve. The
company derives return assumptions for all other equity and fixed income asser classes by
starting wich cither the U.S. Equity or U.S. Fixed Income recurn assumption and adding a
visk premium, which reflects any additional risk inherent in the asset class.
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The company determined the discount rates by referencing indices for long-term, high
quality bonds, ensuring that the durations of those indices were not marerially different
from the duracion of the plans’ liabilirics, or if different, that adjusting the discounc rate
would not have produced results that were materially different from using a common
discount rate for alt of its plans,

The annual rate of increase in healthcare and prescription drug costs is assumed to
decline ratably each year until reaching 5% in 2015 and thereafter. The effect of a 1%
increase in the assumed combined cost trend rate would increase the December 31, 2006
accumulated postretirement benefic obligation by $6 million and the total service and
interest cost for 2006 by 31 million. The effect of a 1% decrease in the assumed healthcare
cost trend rate would decrease the December 31, 2006 accumulated postretirement benefic
obligation by $5 million and the total service and interest cost for 2006 by $1 million.

The company also has defined contribution plans that cover substantially all U.S. and
cereain non-U.S. based employees. Expense for company matching contributions under
these plans was $28 million, $30 million and $37 million for the vears ended December 31,
2006, 20035 and 2004, respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN ASSETS The MeadWestvaco U.S. retirement plan asset allocarion ar
December 31, 2006 and 2005, long-term target allocation, and expected long-term rate of
return by asset category are as follows:

Weighted

average expected

Targel Percentage of plan long-term rate

Asset category allocation assets at December 31 of return
2006 2005 2006

Equity securities 66% £86% 66% 9.77%
Debt securities 21% 30% 30% 4.90%
Real estate 8% % 2% 7.36%
Other 5% 2% 2% 16.01%

Totai 100% 100% 100%
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The MeadWestvaco Master Retirement Trust maintains a well-diversificd investment
program through bath the long-term allocation of trust fund assets among asset classes and
the selection of investment managers whose various styles are fundamentally complementary
to one another and serve to achieve satisfactory rates of return. Active management of
assets is used in asser classes and strategies where there is the porential to add value over
a benchmark. The long-term trust fund asset allocation policy emphasizes the use of the
equity class of securities that are expected to provide the long-term growth necessary to
cover the growth of the plans’ obligations. The policy may also atlocate funds to other asset
classes that serve to enhance long-term, risk-adjusted rerurn expectations. Investment risk
is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements,
periodic asset/liability studies and quarterly investment portfolio reviews. A portion of
the overall fund will remain in shore-term fixed income investments in order to meet the
ongoing operating cash requirements of the plans.

As a result of the sale of the printing and writing papers businesses, approximacely
$303 million of pension assets, and related liabilities, for bargained hourly employees were
transferred to the buyer in July 2005,

CASH FLOWS The company does not anticipate any required contributions to the U.5.
qualified retirement plans in the foresceable future as the plans are not required to
make any minimum regulatory funding contribution. However, the company expects to
contribute $3 million 1o the funded non-U.S. pension plans in 2007,

The company expects to pay $24 million in benefits to participants of the nonqualified,
and unfunded non-U.5. retirement and postretirement plans in 2007, The table below
presents estimated future benefits payments, which substancially all are expected to be
funded from plan assets.

ESTIMATED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS: Postretiremeant Postretirement
benefits before berefits after

Reurement Medicare Part D Medicare Part ©

In millions benefits subs:dy subs:dy
2007 $148 $19 $18
2008 153 18 17
2009 157 17 16
2010 163 16 15
2011 167 15 14
2012 - 2016 949 52 48

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS MeadWestvaco provides limited postemployment benefits
to former or inactive employees, including short-term and long-term disabiliry, workers’
compensation, severance, and health and welfare benefit continuarion.
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L. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 For the vear ended December 31, 2006, Mead Westvaco
recorded rotal pre-tax charges of $133 million for asset writedowns. facility closures
and employce separation costs, of which $33 million, $60 million and $20 million were
recorded within cost of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses, and other
income, net, respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2006 the company recorded toral pre-tax
charges of $53 million of which $16 million, $26 million and $11 million were recorded
within cost of sales, selling, general and adminiserative expenses, and other income, net,
respectively.

Although these charges related to individual segments, such amounts are reflected in
corporate and other for segment reporring purposes.

The following table and discussion present additional detail of the 2006 charges by

business segment:

Asset wriiedowns Emplayee
In millions and other costs cosis Total
Packaging Resources 25 32 % 27
Consumer Solutions 5 25 30
Consumer and Office Products 4 4 8
All other 439 19 68
$83 550 $133

Packaging Resources: During the year, the company incurred charges of $27 miltion for
asset writedowns, employee separation costs and various other restructuring activities in
its packaging operations in the U.S. The charges included employee separation costs of
$2 million related to approximately 40 employees. All of the affected employees will be
separated by the end of 2007. The remaining $25 million related to asset impairments.
Consumer Solutions: During the year, the company incurred charges of $30 million
for asset writedawns, employee separation costs and other restructuring costs refated to
the closing of a packaging converting plant in the U.S. and various other restrucruring
activities in its packaging converting operations in the U.S. and Europe. The charges
include separation costs of $23 million related to approximately 860 cmployees. The
majority of the affected employees had separated from the company by December 31,
2006, and the remaining employees will be separated by the end of 2007 The remaining
$5 million included asser writedowns and other facility closure-related costs. _
Consumer and Qffice Produces: During the year, the company incurred charges of $8
millien for asser writedowns, employee separacion costs and other restructuring costs
incurred in connection with various restrucruring activities in irs consumer and othce
products manufacturing operations in North America. The charges included employee
separation costs of $4 million, related to approximartely 150 emplovees. and $4 million for
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asset writedowns including asser impairments and other costs. The majority of the affected
employees had separated from the company by December 31, 2006, and the remaining
employees will be separated by the end of 2007,

All other: During the year, the company also recorded charges of approximately $19
million related to employee separarion costs covering approximately 290 employees. The
majority of the affected employees had separated from the company by December 31,
2006, and the remaining employees will be separated by the end of 2007. Additionally, the
company incurred charges of $49 million in connection with asset impairments, charges
associated with ceased-use faciliries and a write-down of an equity investment.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2005 For the year ended December 31, 2005, MeadWestvaco
recorded total pre-tax charges of $29 million for asset writedowns, facility closures and
employee separation costs, of which $18 million and $11 million were recorded within cost
of sales and selling, general and administration expenses, respectively. Of these charges,

$9 million relared ro the company’s productivity initiative and $20 million related to its
cast initiative. These charges included the closing of a Consumer Solutions converting plant
in the U.S. and various other restructuring activities in the Packaging Resources, Consumer
Solutions and Consumer and Office Products operacions in the U.S. and Europe, including
asset impairments and employee separation costs covering approximartely 300 employees.
The company also recorded employee separation charges of $6 million in corporate and
other covering approximately 190 employees. As of December 31, 2006, actions related to
these charges were substantially paid. Although the charges were not recorded as part of
segment results, $3 million related to the Packaging Resources segment, $11 million o the
Consumer Solutions segment, $8 million to the Consumer and Office Products segment,
and $9 million to corporate and other. Additionally, in 2003, the company sold previously
written-dewn Consumer and Office Producrs assets, resulting in a gain of $2 million.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 For the vear ended December 31, 2004, MeadWestvaco
recorded rotal pre-tax charges of $100 million for asser writedowns, facility closures and
employee separation costs, of which $89 million and $11 million were recorded within cost
of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses, respectively. The charges relared
primarily to the closing of a domestic packaging systems plant and various consolidation
activities in the company's packaging facilicies, primarily in Europe; actions taken to
consolidate the consumer and office products operations in North America and close
several facilities; and the reorganization of corporate functions and other business units.
As of December 31, 2005, all of the acrions related to these charges were complete, and
the accruals for employee and other costs were substantially urilized. Although the charges
were not recorded as part of segment results, $1 million related to the Packaging Resources
segment, $38 million to the Consumer Solutions segment, $45 million to the Consumer
and Office Products segment, and $16 miltlion to corporate and other, Addirionally, in
2004, the company sold a previously written-down corporate asser, resulting in a gain of
$2 million.

QOpening Qur Possibilities

99




100

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF RESTRUCTURING ACCRUALS The activity in the accrued restructuring balances
related to all of the plans described above was as follows for the year ended December 31,
2004 to the year ended December 31, 2006:

Employee Other
In millions costs costs Total
Baiance of restructuring accruals
at December 31, 2003 $20 $ 6 $26
Current charges 34 33 67
Change in estimate (2) - (2)
Payments (39) (31} (70
Balance of restructuring accruals
at December 31, 2004 13 8 21
Current charges 16 8 24
Payments 22} (12) (34)
Balance of restructuring accruals
at December 31, 2005 7 4 11
Current charges 50 17 67
Payments (27) {6) (33)
Restructuring reserves related to Calmar acquisition® 5 5
Balance of restructuring accruals
at December 31, 2006 $35 515 %50

* In connection with the acguisition of Calmar, the company established a reserve under purchase accounting for restructuring
actions. See Note P for further discussion.

M. OTHER INCOME, NET

Components of other income, net are as follows:

Years ended December 31

n millions 20056 2005 2004
Gains on sales of forestlands 3(29) $(60) $(176)
Gain on sale of corporate real estate (18} - -
Gain on sale of PIK note 21) - -
Interest income (20) (33) (12}
Asset impairments 20 - -
Transition services income (5) (25} -
Loss on the extinguishment of debt - 90 1
Foreign currency exchange losses (gains} (2) 8 {10
Other, net (8} 4 -
$(83}) %(16) $(197)
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During 2006, the company recorded a $21 million gain on the sale of a PIK note received
as part of the consideration for the sale of the printing and writing papers business in 2005,
As part of the company’s iniriative to reduce its real estate footprint, the company sold
cotporate real estate for a gain of $18 million in 2006. Gains on the sale of forestlands were
$29 million in 2006 related to the sale of 8,000 acres. During 2005, the company complered
the sale of 20,000 acres of forestlands generating gains of $60 million compared to gains
of $176 million on the sale of 129,000 acres of forestlands in 2004. In 2006 and 2005,
income of $5 million and $25 mitlion, respectively, was recorded from services provided to
NewPage Corporation pursuant to the printing and writing papers sale agreement (see Note
P for furcher detail on the sale). The company utilized cash proceeds from the sale of is
printing and writing papers business to repay approximately $1 billion of debt in 2005 and,
as a resule, incurred charges for debt retirement of $90 million, compared ro $1 million of
charges incurred in 2004,

The company recorded its propertionate share of the net income or (losses) of its
equity-method investments in other income, net, in the amounts of $(19) million, $(4)
million and $2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Included in che 2006 loss was a $13 million charge related to an equity-method investment
which was deemed to have an other than temporary impairmenr. The operating results of
those affiliates for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 included revenues
of $205 million, $199 million and $207 million, respectively, and net losses of $16 million,
$21 million and $14 million, respectively. The financial position of thase affiliates as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 reflected assets of $173 million and $169 million, respectively,
and liabilities of $37 million and $39 million, respectively.

N. INCOME TAXES
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes is comprised of the following:

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
U.8. domestic earnings 3 (50} $4(27) $137
Foreign earnings 148 182 186

$ 98 %138 $323
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The significant components of the income tax provision are as follows:

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004

Currently payable:

U.S. federal 56 $ 103 $ -
State and local 16 13 -
Foreign 39 46 41
6l 162 11

Deferred:
U.S. federal (38} (165) (149)
State and local {18) (37) 2
Fareign (1) 1
Provision for deferred income taxes {56} {203) {146)
5 {41) (105)
Allocation to discontinuad aparations (&7} {204}
Income tax provision’ $ 5 $ 16 $ 99

! Related to continiuing aperations,

The following rable summarizes the major differences between the actual income tax
provision attributable to continuing operations and taxes compured at the U.S. federal
statutory rate:

Years ended December 31

In miflions 2006 2005 2004

Income tax provision computed at the U.S.

federal statutory rate of 35% %35 £ 47 $113
State and local income laxes, net of federal benefit (8) {11 {3
Foreign income tax rate differential {12) (14 {20)
Valuation allowances 6 2 22
Other permanent differences (e {8) (8)
Credits (3 (4) -
Other 3 4 (5)
Income tax provisicn! 1+ 5 %16 $ 99
Effective tax rate! b4 11.9% 306%

1 Related to continuing operations.
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The principal current and noncurrent deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

December 31

In millions 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefits $ 154 $ 148
Postretirement benefit accrual 62 65
Other accruals and reserves 76 101
Identifiable intangibles - 23
Net operating loss carryforwards 147 151
Other 75 48
Total deferred tax assets 514 536
Valuation aflowance (126) {132)
Net deferred tax assets 388 404
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and depletion (933) (986}
Nontaxable pension asset (364) (348}
State and local taxes (84) (86}
Identifiable intangibles (85) -
Other (39) (95)
Total deferred 1ax liabilities (1,508) (1,515
Net deferred liability S(1.117) $(1,111)
included in the balance sheet:
Current asseis — deferred tax asset 360 $41
Nencurrent net deferred tax liability (1,177} (1,152)
Net deferred liability $(1,117) $(1,111)

The company has approximately $8 million of federal net operating loss carryover subject
to certain limitations on utilization imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the
company also has state and foreign tax net operating loss carryforwards which are available

to reduce future raxable income in various state and foreign jurisdictions, The company’s

valuation allowance against deferred tax assets primarily relates to the state and foreign tax

ner operating losses for which the ubliimate realization of furure benefits is unceruain.
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For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, no domestic income raxes have been
provided on the company’s share of undiscributed net earnings of overseas operations due
0 management’s intent to reinvest such amounts indehnitely. Those carnings totaled $985
million and $788 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, including foreign
currency translation adjustments. Computation of the potential deferred tax liability
associated with these undistributed earnings is not pracricable.

The company has operations in tax jurisdictions located in many areas of the world
and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. Tax audits by their nature are often complex
and can require several vears to resolve. While actual results could vary, in management’s
judgment, the company has adequate accruals with respect to the ultimate outcome of such
audirs. Such accruals are included in other long-term obligations and deferred income raxes,
and include certain pre-acquisition contingencies.

Approximately $34 million and $3 million of deferred income tax benefit was
provided for components of accumulated other comprehensive loss during the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2003, respecrively. There were insignificant amounts of deferred
income tax benefits recorded during the year ended December 31, 2004,

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
in the financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for income Taxes.
FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax rerurn. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalvies,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This Interpretation is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The cumulative effects, if any, of applying
FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the
period of adeption. The company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of
FIN 48 will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition and is not

yet in a position to determine such effects.

0. ENVIRONMENTAL AND LEGAL MATTERS

The company has been notified by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA™)
or by various state or local governments that it may be liable under federal environmental
laws or under applicable state or local laws with respect to the cleanup of hazardous
substances at sites previously operated or used by the company. The company is currently
named as a potentially responsible party ("PRP”), or has received third-party requests

for contribution under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act ({CERCLA) and similar state or local laws with respect 1o numerous sites. There
are other sites which may contain contamination or which may be potential Superfund sires,
but for which MeadWestvaco has not received any notice or claim. The potential liability
for all chese sites will depend upon several factors, including the extent of conraminarion,
the method of remediation, insurance coverage and contribution by other PRPs. The
company regularly evaluates its potential liability at these various sites. At December 31,
2006, Mead Westvaco had recorded liabilities of approximately $22 million for estimated
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potential cleanup costs based upon its close monitoring of ongoing activities and its past
expetience with these marters. The company believes that it is reasonably possible that
costs associated with these sites may exceed amounts of recorded liabilities by an amount
that could range from an insignificant amount to as much as $20 million. This estimace is
less certain than the estimate upon which the environmental liabilities were based. After
consulting with legal counsel and after considering established liabilities, it is our judgment
that the resolution of pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the company’s consolidated financial condition or liquidity. [n any given
period or periods, however, it is possible such proceedings or marters could have a marerial
effect on the results of operations.

As with numerous other large industrial companies, the company has been named a
defendant in asbestos-related personal injury licigation. Typically, these suits also name
many other carporate defendants. All of the claims against the company resolved 10
date have been concluded before trial, either through dismissal or through sertlement
with payments to the plaintiff cthat are not material to the company. To date, the costs
resulting from the litigation, including settlement costs, have not been significant. As of
December 31, 2006, there were approximarcly 350 lawsuics, Management believes char
the company has subscantial indemnification protection and insurance coverage, subject
to applicable deducrtibles and policy limits, with respect to asbestos claims. The company
has valid defenses to these claims and intends o continue 1o defend them vigorously.
Additionally, based on its historical experience in ashestos cases and an analysis of the
current cases, the company believes that it has adequate amounts accrued for potential
settlements and judgments in asbestos-related litigation. At December 31, 2006, the
company had recorded litigation liabilities of approximarely $22 millien, a significant
portion of which relates to asbestos. Should the volume of litigation grow substantially,
it is possible that the company could incur significant costs resolving these cases. After
consulting with legal counsel and after considering established liabilities, it is our
judgment that the resolution of pending litigation and proceedings is nor expected to have
a material adverse effect on the company’s consolidated financial condition or liquidity. In
any given period or periods, however, it is possible such proceedings or matters could have
a material effect on the results of operations.

MeadWestvaco is involved in various ocher litigation and administrative proceedings
arising in the normal course of business. Alchough the ultimate outcome of such matters
cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not believe that the currently
expected outcome of any matter, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened, or all
of them combined, will have a material adverse effect on the company’s consolidated
financial condition or liquidity. In any given periad or periods, however, it is possible such
proceedings or matters could have a material effect on the results of operations.
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P. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

2006 ACQUISITIONS On July 5, 2006, the company completed its acquisition of Saine-
Gobain Calmar (*Calmar™) from Compagnie de Saint-Gobain. Calmar is a leading global
manufacturer of high-quality and innovarive plastic dispensing and spraying systems, with
manufacturing facilities in North America, Europe, Latin America and Asia, The business
generates sales in 43 countries and employs approximately 2.700 people worldwide.

Excluding cash acquired. the purchase price including direct transaction costs was $§714
million. The resules of Calmar are included in the consolidared financial statements from
the acquisition date and are included in the company’s Consumer Solutions segment. See
Note R for further discussion of the company’s segments.

The acquisition was recorded by allocating the total consideration to the assets acquired,
including intangible assers, and labilities assumed, based on their estimated fair values ar
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the net amounts assigned
to the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recorded as goodwill.

The following rable summarizes the purchase price allocation hased on the estimated fair

values of the assers acquired and liabilicies assumed at the date of acquisition {in milliens):

Purchase price allocation:

Accounts receivable $ 76
Inventories 57
Praperty. plant, equipment and land 197
Amortizable and indefinite-lived intangible assets 277
Goodwill 302
Other assets 21
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {68)
Long-term deferred income taxes (127)
Debt and other long-term obligations {21)

$ 714
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The components of the amortizable and indefinite-lived intangible assets listed in the above
table as of the acquisition date were as follows {in millions):

Amount Life

Custemer contracts and lists %168 21 years

Trademarks and tradenames 91 tndefinite

Patents 18 3-7 years
3277

The trademarks and tradenames were deemed to have indefinite lives and, accordingly,
are not being amortized, bur will be subject to periodic impairment testing, The customer
contracts and lists and the patents are being amortized on a method based upon estimated
future cash flows associared with chese assers.

The following unaudited pro-forma financial informartion presencs the combined
results of operations of the company and Calmar as if the acquisition had occurred ar the
beginning of each period presented (in millions, except per share amounts):

Year ended December 31

2006 2005
Net sales $6.754 $6.562
income from continuing operations
before income taxes 95 110
Net income a5 10
Net income per share:
Basic $ 053 $ 0.05
Diluted 0.52 0.05

Pro-forma net income for cach of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, include
afrer-tax expense of $8 million for the amortizacion of purchased intangibles and
depreciation associated with a step-up in value of property, plant and equipment. Pro-forma
net income for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, also includes after-
tax acquisition-related charges of $3 million due to expensing a fair value adjustment for
inventory. Pro-forma net income assumes an income tax provision at the combined effective
tax rates of the company and Calmar for each respective period presented. Included in
pro-forma net income for the year ended December 31, 2006, is a $6 million income rax
benefit recorded in Calmar’s historical income statement for che release of a deferred cax
asset valuation allowance. In addition, pro-forma net income for each of the years ended
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December 31, 2006 and 2005 include after-rax inrerest expense of $23 nuillion for the
amount borrowed and che cash utilized o acquire Calmar.

The pro-forma financial information is not intended 1o tepresent or be indicartive of the
company’s consolidated resules of operations or financial condition that would have been
teported had the acquisition been completed as of the beginning of the periods presented
and should not be taken as indicative of the company’s future consolidated results of
operations or financial condition.

2005 ACQUISITIONS During the fourth quarter of 2003, MeadWestvaco acquired DZN,
The Design Group (DZN} for approximarely $5 million. DZN is a full service design and
marketing company based in Los Angeles, California, which has enhanced MeadWestvaco’s
package design capabiliries, enabling the company to provide a more competirive and
comprehensive set of creative design services, and is included in the company’s Consumer
Solutions segment. The purchase price allocation resulted in approximately $5 million of
recorded goodwill.

Pro-forma resules for this acquisition are not presented, as the transaction was not material

to the company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 20035.

2004 ACQUISITIONS During the second quarter of 2004, MeadWestvaco acquired Aries
Packaging for approximately $21 million, Aries is a machinery systems company 1n
Troyes. France, which supports the company’s dairy packaging systems business in Europe
and represents a platform for growth in other markets, and is included in the company’s
Consumer Solutions segment. The purchase price allocation resulted in approximarely $4
million of idenrifiable intangible assets that will be amortized over their estimared useful
lives of 10 years, and goodwill of $12 million. The remainder was primarily allocated to
working capiral items.

During the third quarter of 2004, the company acquired Tilibra, a manufacturer of
school, office and rime-management stationery products in Bavru, Sao Paulo stare, Brazil,
which will help the company extend its consumer and office products franchise in Latin
America’s largest market, while creating an ideal platform for expansion elsewhere in the
region. This acquisition is included in the company’s Consumer and Office Products
segment, The purchase price was $71 million and resulted in approximarely $25 million of
identifiable intangible assets that will be amortized over their estimated useful lives of five
to 20 years, and goodwill of $36 million with the remainder allocated to fixed assets and
working capital irems.

Additionally, another small acquisition was made in 2004, with a purchase price of
$9 million.

I'ro-forma resules for these acquisitions are not presented. as these transactions
were not material to the company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended

December 31, 2004,
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DISFOSITIONS On January 14, 2005, the company entered into an agreement to sell

its printing and writing papers business, including its coated and carbonless papers
operations, and related forestlands to an affiliate of Cerberus Management LLC, a private
investment firm.

Effective April 30, 2005, this divestiture was completed. Upon closing, the company
received proceeds from the buyer of $2.2 billion in cash (subject to certain adjustments)
and $100 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured payable-in-kind
(PIK) promissory notes (fair value of $75 million ar date of issuance) of a subsidiary of
the purchaser. Refer to Note D for a discussion of the unrealized loss on the PIK notes at
December 31, 2005 and the realized gain of $21 million in 2006.

As a result of the sale, the company incurred a pre-tax accounting loss on sale of
approximately $916 million {$687 million after tax), of which $710 million ($548 million
after tax) was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2004 for impairments of goodwill and other
long-lived assets, and pension and other employee benefit settlements and curtailments. The
remaining $206 million ($139 million after tax) in charges was recorded in the first half of
2005. The company began reporting the papers business as a discontinued operation in the
first quarter of 2005. The prior period has been presented on a comparable basis.

The company recorded a loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, of
$91 million, or $0.48 per share, for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared 1o a loss
from discontinued operations, net of income raxes, of $573 million, or $2.82 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2004, Included in discontinued operations is interest
expense directly arrributable to the papers business and an allocation of gencral interest
expense pursuant to the guidance under EITF 87-24, Allocation of Interest to Discontinued
Operations. Under the guidance of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets, the assets associated with the sale of the printing and writing papers
business were classified as held-for-sale and were not depreciated or amortized in 2005.
Included in discontinued operations for 2005 was the benefit of a LIFO decrement of
abour $30 million. In connection with the sale of the printing and writing papers business,
the company provided certain guarantees and indemnities to the buyer and other parties,
These obligations include both potential environmental matters as well as certain contracts
with third parties. The company has evaluated these guarantees and indemnifications in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 45
(FIN 45), Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirecr Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, which did nor result in a material impacr on
the company’s consolidated financial statements.
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The following table shows the major categories for discontinued operations in the
consolidated statements of operations for the vears ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
which includes both the loss on the sale and results of operations for the printing and
writing papers business. For the year ended December 31. 2005, there are only four
months of operatiens included, as the business was sald April 30, 2005.

Years ended December 31

In millicns, except per share amounts 2005 2004
Net sales $ 712 $2.166
Cost of sales 611 2,104
Selling, general and administrative expenses 26 81
Interest expense 20 2]

Other (income) expense, nat 203 689

Loss from discontinued operations

before income laxes {148) (777)
Income tax benefit {57) {204)
Net loss from discontinued operations $ (9l $ (573)
Net loss from discontinued operations per share — diluted $(0.48) $(2.82)

Results of operations, excluding the loss on sale, for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004, was income of $48 million and a loss of $25 million, respectively.
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Q. CASH FLOWS

Changes in current assets and labilities, net of acquisiriens and dispositions, were as follows:

Years ended December 31

In millions 2006 2005 2004
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables $ (8 $ (52) $(108)
Inventories 72 21 (12}
Prepaid expenses (7 (3) (1
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 68 (57) 184
Income taxes payable!' 4 (18%) 15
$129 $(271) $ 78
Years ended December 31
In milligns 2006 2005 2004
Cash paid for:
interest $209 § 220 $214
Less capitalized interest (2) (3) (2)
Interest paid, net $207 $ 217 $212
Income taxes paid (refunded), net $ & $225 $ 19

1 Includes approximately $160 million in 2005 related to taxes payable upon the sale of the printing and writing papers business.
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R. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

MeadWestvaco's principal business segments are (i} Packaging Resources, (ii) Consumer
Solutions, (iii) Consumer and Office Products, and (iv} Specialty Chemicals. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, the company completed the change in its management and operating
structure such that its previously reported Packaging segment was replaced by the Packaging
Resources and Consumer Solurions segments. This segment structure reflects the company’s
internal reporting to its chief decision maker and aligns the segment disclosure with
management's analysis of results of operations and the process utilized to allocate resources.
The company has presented ics reportable segments for 2005 and 2004 to reflect the new
reporting structure adopred in 20006.

The Packaging Resources segment produces bleached paperboard, Coated Natural
Kraft® paperboard {CNK}, kraft paperboard, linerboard and saturating kraft and
packaging for consumer products markers. This segment’s products are manufacrured
at four domestic mills and two mills located in Brazil. Bleached paperboard is used for
packaging high-value consumer products such as pharmaceuticals, cosmerics, tobacco,
food service, media products and aseptic carrons. CNK paperboard is used for a range of
packaging applications, the largest of which for Mead Westvaco is mulri-pack beverage
packaging. Kraft paperboard is used for folding carton applications. Linerboard is used
in the manufacrure of corrugated boxes and containers. Saturating kraft is used in the
manufacture of decorative laminates for kitchen countertops, furniture, flooring, wall
panels, as well as pad stock for electronic components.

The Consumer Solurions segment offers a full range of converting and consumer
packaging solutions including printed plastic packaging and injection-molded products
used for packaging media products such as DVDs and CDs; cosmetics and pharmaceurical
products; and plastic dispensing and spraying systems for personal care, healthcare,
fragrance and lawn and garden markets. This segment designs and produces multi-pack
cartons and packaging systems primarily for the beverage take-home market and packaging
for the wbacce marker. Paperboard and plastic are converted into packaging produces
at plants located in North America, Brazil, Asia and Europe. In addition, this segment
manufactures equipment that is leased or sold to its beverage and dairy customers to

package their products.
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The Consumer and Office Products segment manufactures, markets and distributes school,
office, envelope and time-management products to retailers and commercial distributors.
This segment’s operations are conducted predominantly in North America and Brazil.

The Specialty Chemicals segment manufactures, markets and distributes products at
four primary domestic locations. Major product groups are: activated carbon products;
printing ink resins and lignin-based surfactancs; and tall oil fatty acid, rosin and
derivative products.

Corporate and other includes the company’s specialty papers and forestry operations as
well as corporate support staff services and related assets and liabilities, including merger-
related goodwill. The resules include income and expense items not directly associated with
continuing segment operations, such as restructuring charges and one-time costs, legal
settlements, ner pension income, interest income and expense, goodwill impairment charges,
gains on sales of forestlands and corporate real estate and other activities.

The segments are measured on operating profits before restructuring charges and
one-rime costs, interest income and expense, minority interest, income taxes, extraordinary
items and cumulative effect of accounting changes. The segments follow the same
accounting principles described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Sales
between the segments are recorded primarily ac market prices.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of consolidated trade sales in the
periods presented.

~ Years ended December 31
In millions 2006 2005 2004
Total sales outside of the U.S. $1.842 $1,745 $1,582
Export sales from the U.S. 880 829 826
Long-lived assets located outside the U.S. 1,176 772 809
Long-lived assets located in the U.S. 5,094 6,106 6,310
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Financial information by business segment follows:

In millions Trade Inter-segment Total
Year ended December 31, 2006

Packaging Resources $2.564 $ 389 $2,953
Consumer Solutions? 2,169 1 2,170
Consumer and Office Products 1,143 - 1,143
Specialty Chemicals 468 25 493
Carporate and other* 186 33 219
Total 6,530 448 5,978
Intersegment eliminations - (448) (448)
Consolidated totals® $6,530 $ - $6,530
Year ended December 31, 2005}

Packaging Resources $2.446 $ 390 $2,836
Consumer Sciutions 2,021 - 2,021
Consumer and Oifice Preducts 1,125 - 1,125
Specialty Chemicals 396 29 425
Corporate and other3? 182 31 213
Total 6,170 450 6.620
Intersegment eliminations - {450) (450)
Consolidated totals® $6,170 $ - $6.170
Year ended December 31, 2004}

Packaging Resources $2,365 $ 389 $2,754
Consumer Sclutions 2,030 - 2,030
Consumer and Oifice Products 1,080 - 1,090
Specialty Chemicals 385 25 410
Corporate and other** 190 26 216
Total 6,060 440 6,500
Assets of discontinued operations® - - -
Intersegment eliminations - (440) (440]
Ceonsolidated totals® $6.,060 $ - $6.060

! Prior period segment amounts have been presented to confarm to the new segment struclure adopted in the fourth quarter

of 2006.

2 The third and fourth quarters of 2006 include the results of Calmar, acquired in July 2006.
3 Revenue included in Corporate and other includes specialty papers sales and timber sales of the forestry operation, and

excludes proceeds from the sale of forestiands.

1 Corporate and other may include goodwill impairment charges. minarity interest, debt retirement charges, restruciuring

charges and one-time costs, pensicn income, interest expense and income and gains on asset sales.

5 Consolidated totals represent income from continuing operations before income taxes.
& Assets of discontinued operations represent the assets of the printing and writing papers business, which was sold in 2005.
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Depreciation,

Segment depletion and Capital
orofit (toss) amortization Segment assets expendrtures
%275 $223 $ 3,169 $126
93 160 2571 96
127 39 824 11
51 21 342 26
(448) 74 2.379 43
g8 517 9,285 302

$ 98 $517 $ 9,285 $302
$ 234 $222 $ 3,288 $141
102 150 1,641 96
130 39 843 11
39 20 328 18
(370) 60 2,808 39
135 491 8,908 305

$ 135 $491 $ 8,908 $305
$ 270 $219 $ 3,326 %118
161 151 1,818 120
137 37 830 14
57 21 318 22
(302) 61 2,817 43
323 489 9,109 317
- - 2,537 -

$ 323 $489 $11,646 $317
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S. SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Years ended December 31

In millions, except per share dala 2006° 20052
Sales
First 41,434 $1,373
Second 1.570 1,587
Third 1.751 1,583
Fourth 1.775 1,627
Year $6,530 $6,170
Gross profit
First $ 217 $ 225
Second 252 285
Third 335 288
Fourth 327 285
Year $1.131 $1,083
tncome {loss) from continuing cperations
First kS 3 $ 17
Second (7) {13)
Third 56 55
Fourth 41 60
Year $ 93 $ 119
Net income {loss)
First 3 3 $ (6
Second (7} (83)
Third 56 55
Fourth 41 62
Year %63 $ 28
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S. SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED), continued

Years ended December 31

20086! 2005°
Income (loss) from continuing operations
per common share, hasic
First $0.02 $ 0.08
Second (0.04) (0.06)
Third ¢.31 0.30
Fourth 0.23 0.33
Income (loss) from continuing operations
per common share, diluted
First $0.02 $ 0.08
Second (0.04) (0.06)
Third 0.31 0.30
Fourth 0.23 0.33
Net income {loss) per common share, basic
First $0.02 $0.03)
Second (0.04) 041
Third 0.31 0.30
Fourth 0.23 (.34)
Net income {loss) per common share, diluted
First 3002 $(0.03)
Second (0.04} (0.41)
Third 0.31 0.30
Fourth 0.23 .34

1 First quarter 2006 results include an after-tax restructuring charge of $2 million, or $0.01 per share, primarily for employee
separation costs and an after-tax gain on forestland sales of $2 million, or $0.01 per share. Second quarter 2006 resulis
include an after-tax restructuring charge of $37 mitlion, or $0.20 par share, primarily related to the permanent shutdown of
two previously id'ed paperboard machines as well as employee separation costs; one-time after-tax costs of $6 million, or
$.04 per share, rglated to the company's cost initiative; and an after-tax gain of $13 million, or $.07 per share, on the sale
of a note received as part of the considaration for the sale of the printing and writings paper business in 2005. Third quarter
2006 results include an after-tax restructuring charge of $12 million, or $.07 per share, primarily related to employee
separation cosls and facility closures and cne-time after-tax costs of $6 million, $.03 per share, related to the company's
cost initigtive. Fourth guarter 2006 results include an after-tax restructuring charge of $34 million, or $.19 per share,
primarily related to employee separation costs. facility closures and asset impairments and one-time after-lax costs of $12
million, $.06 per share, related to the company’s cost initiative and an after-tax gain from the sale of corporate real estate of
$11 million, or $.06 per share.

2 First quarter 2005 resuits include an after-tax charge of $3 million, or $0.01 per share, for employee separation costs,
assel writedowns and other restructuring-related costs, and an after-tax gain from the sale of forestlands of $25 millian, or
$0.12 per share, Second guarter 2005 resulis include an after-1ax charge of $6 million, or $0.03 per share, related to asset
writedowns, employee separation costs and other restructuring-related costs, an after-tax charge for debt retirement of $56
million, or $0.28 per share, and an after-tax gain from the sale of forestlands of 1 million, or $0.01 per share. Third quarter
2005 results include an after-tax charge of $7 million, cr $0.04 per share, related to asset writedowns, facility closures
and employee separation cests, and an after-tax gain from the sale of forestlands of $10 million, or $0.05 per share. Fourth
quarter 2005 results include an after-tax charge of $3 million, or $0.02 per share, related primarily to employee separation
costs, and an after-tax gain from the sale of forestlands of $2 million, or $0.C1 per share.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

MANAGEMENT S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Management is responsible
for the information and representations in the accompanying consolidated hnancial
statements and relared notes as well as all other financial information contained in this
report. These financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepred in the United States of America and by necessity include some amounts
determined using informed estimates and assumptions.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the company's independent registered public accounting
firm, was engaged to audir the consolidared financial statements and was responsible for
conducting an audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounring
QOversight Board (United Sraces). The appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
campany’s independent registered public accounting firm by the Board of Directors, on the
recommendation of che Audit Committee, has been ratified each year by the shareholders.
PricewatcrhouseCoopers LLP's opinion on the company’s consolidated financial statements
is stated in their report which is included herein.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed solely of nonmanagement
direcrors, meers regularly with the company’s management, the internal audit direcror and
representatives of the independent registered public accounting firm ro discuss accounting
and financial reporting matters, internal control over financial reporting, and the nature,
scope and results of audits. The Audit Committee meets with the independent registered
public accounting firm both with and without management. The Committee also meets
with the company’s general counsel to review the company’s legal compliance program as
well as significant litigation issues. The independent registered public accounting firm and
the director of internal audit have full and free access to the Audic Committee.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL GVER FINANCIAL REPGRTING Management

is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over Anancial
teporting for the company. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control aver
financial reporting, management has conducted an assessment. including testing, using the
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSQ), The company’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepred accounting pringiples. Because
of its inherent limitations, internal contral ever financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future perieds are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequarte because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorare.

The company has excluded certain elements of the internal control over financial
reporting of the Saini-Gobain Calmar (Calmar) businesses that the company acquired
from Compagnie de Saint-Gobain from its assessment of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 because it was acquired by the company in a purchase
business combination during 2006. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain elements of
Calmar’s internal control over financial reporting and related processes were integrated

MeadWestvaco 2006 Annual Report




into the company's existing systems and internal control over financial reporting. Those
controls that were not integrated have been excluded from management’s assessment of

the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, The
excluded elements represent controls over accounts of approximately 7% of consolidated
assets, 3% of conselidated liabilities, 3% of consolidated revenues and 3% of the conselidated
operating expenses of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Based on our assessment, under the criteria established in Iuternal Control — Integrated
Framework, issued by the COSO, management has concluded that the company maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is
included herein.

(620

John A. Luke, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

E. Mark Rajkowski

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial QOfhicer

February 28, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Direcrors and Sharcholders of Mead Westvace Corporation

We have completed integrated audits of MeadWestvaco Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
20406, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United Stares). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [n our opinion. the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mead Westvaco
Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the results of their
aperations and cheir cash Hows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
20006 in confermity with accounting principles generally accepred in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {Unired States). Those standards require chac we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on

a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial sratements,
assessing the accounring principles used and significant estimares made by management, and
evitluating the overall financial statement presentarion. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Nores J and K o the consolidated financial statements, the Company
changed the manner in which it accounts for share-based compensation in fiscal 2006 and
the manner in which it accounts for defined benefit pension and ocher postretirement plans
effective December 31, 2006.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING Also, in our opinion, management‘s
assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Conrrol

Over Financial Reporting. that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in fnzernal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in fnzernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COS50. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal conerol over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audic. We conducted
our audit of internal control over inancial reporting in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obrain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit

of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
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control over Ainancial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audir provides
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporeing is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounring principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records thart. in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii} provide reasonable assurance thar transacrions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounsing principles, and thar receiprs and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and direcrors of the company; and
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detecr misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on [nternal Control Over Financial Reperting,
management has excluded cerrain elements of the internal control over financial reporting
of the Saint-Gobain Calmar (Calmar) businesses thar the Company acquired from
Compagnic de Saint-Gobain from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business
combination during 2006. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain elements of Calmar’s
internal control over financial reporting and related processes were integrated into the
Company's existing systems and internal control over financial reporting. Those controls
that were not integrated have been excluded from management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. We
have alser excluded these elements of the internal control over financial reporting of Calmar
from our audir of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The excluded
clements represent controls over accounts of approximately 7% of consolidated assets, 3%
of consolidated liabilities, 3% of the consolidated revenues and 3% of the consolidated
operating cxpenscs of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for

the year ended December 31, 2006.

‘Pr‘t'cuuq,{-wk&uu@oms LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Richmauomd, Virginia
February 28, 2007
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

This graph compares on a relative basis the cumularive toral return to stockholders on
Mead Westvaco’s common stock from January 30, 2002, the first day of trading of the
company's common stock after the merger, plus reinvested dividends and distribucions
through December 31, 2006 with the return on the Standard 82 Poor’s 500 Stock Index
(S&D 500} and the Standard & Poor’s Paper & Forest Producrs Index (S&P Paper Index),
the company’s peer group index. As of December 31, 2006, the S&P Paper Index included
MeadWestvaco, International Paper and Weyerhaeuser, and has been MeadWestvaco's
traditional peer index. This graph assumes $100 was invested on January 30, 2002 in each
of the following: the company’s common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Paper
Index. This graph should not be taken to imply any assurance that past performance is
predictive of future performance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JOHN A, LUKE, JR.
Chairman and

Chiel Executive Officer
MeadWestvaco Corporation

MICHAEL E. CAMPBELL

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Cliicer

Arch Chemicals, [nc.

OR. THOMAS W. COLE, JR.
Retired President
Clark Atlanta University

JAMES G. KAISER
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Avenir Partners, Inc.

RICHARD B. KELSON

Retired Chairman's Counsel,
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Qfficer

Alcoa, Inc.

JAMES M. KILTS

Founding partner

Centerview Partners
Management LLC

Former Vice Chairman

The Procter & Gamble Company

Former Chairman and Chief
Executive Cfficer

The Gillette Company

JOHN A. KROL

Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

E.I. du Pont de Memours
and Company

SUSAN J. KROPF

Retired President and
Chief Operating Officer

Avon Producls, inc.

DOUGLAS S. LUKE
President and

Chief Executive Officer
HL Capital, Inc.

ROBERT C. MCCORMACK
Founding Partner
Trident Capital, Inc.

TIMOTHY H, POWERS
Chairman, President and

Chief Execulive Officer
Hubbell, Inc.

EDWARD M. STRAW
Retired President of
Global Operations
Estée Lauder Companies, Inc.
Vice Admirat U.S. Navy (Retired)

JANE L. WARNER

Group President
Hlinois Tools Works, inc.
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MEADWESTVACO MANAGEMENT

LEADERSHIP TEAM

JCOHN A, LUKE, JR.
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

JAMES A, BUZZARD
President

MARK S, CROSS
Senior Vice President

E. MARK RAJKOWSKI
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

LINDA V. SCHREINER
Senior Vice President

MARK T. WATKINS
Senicr Vice President

WENDELL L. WILLKIE, #I

Senior Vice President, General
Counse! and Secretary
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DIVISION/GROUP LEADERS

DR. ROBERT K. BECKLER
President
Specialty Chemicals Division

WILLIAM J. BEIDENHARN
President
Consumer Solutions Group

ROBERT A. FEESER
President
Packaging Resources Group

DR. JACK C. GOLDFRANK
President
Center for Packaging Innovation

MARK V. GULLING
President
Global Business Services

MARVIN E. HUNDLEY
President
Farestry Division

MICHAEL J. HUTH
President and General Manager
Specialty Papers Division

MNEIL A, MCLACHLAN

Prasident

Consumer & Office
Products Group

CORPORATE OFFICERS

JOHN E. BANU
Controller

ROBERT E. BIRKENHOLZ
Treasurer

JOHN J. CARRARA
Assistant Secretary and
Associate General Counsel

DONNA OWENS COX
Vice President

DIRK J. KROUSKOP
Vice President

NED wW. MASSEE
Vice President
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WORLDWIBE LOCATIONS

PACKAGING RESOURCES

Blumenau, Brazil

Coltonton, Alabama

Covington, Virginia

Evadale, Texas

Fiera de Santana, Brazil

Low Moor, Virginia

Manuaus, Brazil

North Charleston,
South Carolina

Pacajus, Brazil

Silsbee, Texas

Summerville, South Carolina

Tres Barras, Brazil

Valinhos, Brazil

Venic, Netherlands

CONSUMER SOLUTIONS

Agua Branca, Brazil
Ajax, Canada

Atlanta, Georgia
Bilboa, Spain

Bristol, United Kingdom
Bydgaszcz, Poland
Caguas, Puerto Rico
Chateaurcux, France
Chicago, llingis

Corby, United Kingdom
Deols, France

Dublin, Ireland
Elizabethtown, Kentucky
Enschede, Netherlands
Freden, Germany
Grandview, Missouri
Graz, Austria

Grover, North Carolina
Hemer, Germany
Jacksonville, lllinois
Krakow, Poland
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Lanett, Alabama

Littlehampton, United Kingdom

London, United Kingdom
Louisa, Virginia
Manaus, Brazil
Mebane, North Carolina
Melrose Park, lllincis
Moscow, Russian Federation
Pittsfield, Massachusetts
Roosendaal, Netherlands
San Luis Potosi, Mexico
Shimada, Japan
Slough, United Kingdom
Smyrna, Georgia
Svitavy, Czech Republic
Swindon, United Kingdom
Talgau, Austria
Trier, Germany
Troyes, France
Uden, Netherlands
Valinhos, Brazil
Warrington, Pennsylvania
Wuxi,

Pecple's Republic of China

CONSUMER & QOFFICE
PRODUCTS

Alexandna, Pennsylvania
Atlanta, Georgia

Bauru, Brazil

Dallas, Texas

Enfield, Connecticut
Garden Grove, California
Indianapolis, Indiana
Kencsha, Wisconsin

Los Angeles, California
Sidney, New York
Toronte, Canada
Withiamsburg, Pennsylvania

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS

Albuguerque, New Mexice
Covington, Virginia
DeRidder, Louisiana
North Charleston,

South Caralina
Waynesboro, Georgia
Wickliffe, Kentuchky

SPECIALTY PAPERS

Potsdam, New York
South Lee, Massachusetts

FORESTRY CENTERS

Rupert, West Virginia
Summerville, South Carolina
Tres Barras, Brazil

RESEARCH FACILITIES

Raleigh, North Carolina
Summerville, South Carolina
North Charleston,

South Cargiina
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WORLDWIDE LOCATIONS, continued

SALES

Aliso Viejo, California

Ajax, Canada

Atlanta, Georgia

Bangkak, Thailand
Barcelona, Spain

Bartlett, lllinois

Belo Horizonte, Brazil
Birmingham, United Kingdom
Blumenau, Brazil

Brussels, Belgium
Budapest, Hungry

Buenos Aires, Argentiria
Bydgoszcz, Poland
Caguas, Puerto Rico
Campinas, Brazil

Cape Town, South Africa
Charlotte, North Carolina
Chicago, lllinois
Chichester, United Kingdom
Cincinnati, Ohio

Coppel, Texas

Coral Gables, Florida
Corby, United Kingdom
Caorona, California
Courbevoie, France
Covington, Virginia
Curitiba, Brazil

Del Miguel Hidalgo, Mexico
DeRidder, Louisiana
Dublin, lreland

Dusseldorf, Germany

East Rutherford, New Jersey
Ellerslie, New Zealand
Epping, Austrafia
Enschede, Netherlands
Flemingten, New Jersey
Fortaleza, Brazil
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Garner, North Carolina
Graz, Austria

Grover, North Carolina
Hong Kaong,

People’s Republic of China
Indianapelis, Indiana
ltasca, lllinais
Jacksonville, lllincis
Klaj, Poland
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Lake in the Hills, lilingis
Littleborough Lancs,

United Kingdom
Littlehampton, United Kingdem
London, United Kingdom
Londrina, Brazil
Los Angeles, California
Louisville, Kentucky
Manaus, Brazil
Masan, Ohio
Maurepas, France
Mebane, North Carclina
Melrose Park, lllinois
Mexico City, Mexico
Miami, Flarida
Mississauga, Canada
Mascow, Russian Federation
Mumbai, India
New York, New York
North Brunswick, New Jersey
Roosendaal, Netherlands
Petralina, Brazil
Phenix City, Alabama
Piaseczno, Poland
Pittsfield, Massachusetts
Powell, Chio
Recife, Brazil
Republic of Singapore
Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

Porto Alegre, Brazil
Rosieres-Pres-Trayes, France
Roswell, Georgia
Rumson, New Jersey
Saint-Mande, France
Salvador, Brazil
Santiago, Chile
Szo Paulo, Brazil
Schaumberg, Illinois
Secul, South Korea
Shanghai,

People’s Republic of China
Shekou Shenzhen,

People's Republic of China
Smyrna, Georgia
South Lee, Massachusetts
Springfield, Massachusetts
St. Savior Jersey,

United Kingdom
Svitavy, Czech Republic
Swindon, United Kingdom
Sydney, Australia
Taipei, Taiwan,

Republic of China
Thaigau, Austria
The Woodlands, Texas
Tinton Falls, New Jersey
Tokyo, Japan
Trier-Enrang, Germany
Uberlandia, Brazil
Uden, Netherlands
Venlo, Netherlands
Vienna, Austria
Vila Velha, Brazil
Warrington, Pennsylvania
Warszawa, Paland
Woodbridge, Canada
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

COMPANY PROFILE
MeadWestvaco provides packaging
solutions and products to many of
the world's best-known companies
and most-admired brands. With

a presence in more than 30
countries, our research, design,
manufacturing and distribution
capabilities serve leaders in the
foed and beverage, media and
entertainment, personal care,
home and garden, cosmetics and
healthcare industries. We also
have market-leading positions

in our Consumer & Otfice
Products and Specialty Chemicals
businesses. In our values and

in our operalions, we act on the
principle of sustainability—creating
vatue for shareholders while
fulfilling our environmental, social
and econamic responsibilities.
MeadWestvaco manages all of its
forestlands in accordance with
internationally recognized forest
certification standards, and we
have been selected for the Dow
Jones Sustainability Indexes for a
third consecutive year.

ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHCLDBERS

The next meeting of shareholders
will be held an Monday,

April 30, 2007, at 11:00a.m.
InterContinental Barclay

New York Hotel

111 East 48th Streel

New York, New York

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Symbol: MWy
New York Stock Exchange

INFORMATION REQUESTS
Corporate Secretary
MeadWeastvaco Corporation

Five High Ridge Park

Stamford, Connecticut 06805
Telaphone 203 461 7500

Toil free in the United States and
Canada 80O 432 9874

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Jason F. Thompsaon
203 4561 7616

COMMUNICATIONS
Donna Owens Cox
804 327 5292

DIRECT PURCHASE

AND SALES PLAN

The BuyDIRECT™ Plan,
administered by The Bank of
New York, provides existing
shareholders and interested
first-time investors a direct,
convenient and affordabie
alternative for buying and selling
MeadWestvaco shares. Contact
The Bank of New York for an
enrollment form and brochure
that describes the plan fully
{see contact information below).

MeadWestvaco has filed with the
Securities Exchange Commission,
as an exhibit to its most recently
filed Form 10-K, the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act Section 302 certificalion
regarding the quality of the
company's public disclosure.

MeadWaestvaco has submitted to
the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) its 2006 Annual Written
Affirmation pursuant to Section
303(a) of the Listed Company
Manual of the NYSE.

TRANSFER AGENT

AND REGISTRAR

For BuyDIRECT™ Flan enroliment
and other shareholder inquiries:
MeadWaestvaco Corporation

c/o The Bank of New York

PO Box 11258

New York, New York

10286 1258

For BuyDIRECT™™ Plan sales,
liguidations, transfers, withdrawals
or optional cash vestments
(please use bottom portion of
aadvice or statement):

The Bank of New York
Administrater,

MeadWestvaco Corparation
PQ Box 1958

Newark, New Jersey

07101 9774

To send certificales for transfer or
change of address:

The Bank of New York

Receive and Deliver Department
PO Box 11002

New York, New York

10286 1002

All telephone inquiries:

866 455 3115 tall free in the
United States and Canada

212 815 3700 outside the United
States and Canada

All emalt inguiries:
shareowners@bankofny.com

On the Internet at:
www.stockbny.com
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